CITY OF WILLCOX
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA
Monday, December 6, 2010

7:00 p.m.
City Council Chambers
300 W. Rex Allen Drive
Willcox, AZ 85643

(Mayor or Designee will read only BOLD print of each agenda item,
except for Public Hearings, Petitions and Communications.)

Resolution No. 2010-121
Ordinance NS302

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLLCALL
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC )
Mayor and Council consideration of comments or complaints from the public. Those wishing to address the Council are

required to register by completing an individual speaker's form and filing it with the Clerk before the meeting. The
speaker must be recognized by the Mayor before speaking. Time permitting each presentation will be given
approximately three (3) minutes. it is probable that each organization will be limited to one speaker. Action taken as a
result of public comment will be limited fo directing staff to study or reschedule the matter for further consideration at a

later date.

5. DECLARATION ON CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Councit members and staff have a right to declare a confiict of interest. The declaration of a conflict of interest must be

made prior to discussion of any agenda item in which Council members or staff member determine they have a conflict of
interest.

6. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA . _
The Council will at this time either adopt the agenda as presented or may remove or table any of the listed agenda items.

Tabled items, unless otherwise directed, will appear on the next regular agenda. Council may not add any 'rtgms to the
agenda at this time. Should staff have any recommendations concemning the exclusion or tabling of agenda items they

will voice these recommendations at this time.

7. DISCUSSION/DECISION ENTER EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES  Tab 1
§ 38-431.03A(3) DISCUSSION OR CONSULTATION FOR LEGAL ADVICE WITH THE ATTORNEY OR ATTORNEYS

OF THE PUBLIC BODY
Consideration, discussion and/or decision to enter into an Executive Session pursuant to ARS § 38-431.03A(3), as stated,

reiating to consuitation for legal advice with the attomey(s) of the public body.
8. RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF APPROVED
9. RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION

10. CONSENT AGENDA .
ltems that are considered to be routine by the City Council will be enacted by one motion without discussion. The

consent agenda is a timesaving device and Council members have received documentation on these items _for the_ir
review prior to the open meeting. Any Councilmember may remove any item from the consent agenda for discussion




and a separate vote as deemed necessary. The public may view the documentation relating to the consent agenda 24
hours prior to the meeting at the City Clerk's Office, 101 S. Railroad Avenue, Suite B, Willcox, AZ from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30
p.m. or at the Elsie S. Hogan Library, 100 N. Curtis Avenue during normal working hours Monday-Saturday.

10A. THE REGULAR MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 4, 2010 Tab 2

10B

10C.

1.

12,

13.

14.

185,

16.

. AMENDED RESOLUTION NO. 2010-116 APPROVING THE DISTRIBUTION OF ARIZONA Tab 3

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE FUNDS [“LTAF II"] TO
SELECTED RECIPIENTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FUNDING SPECIFIC PROJECTS AND AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR TO EXECUTE THIS RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY TO EXIST

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-120 APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE TAX Tab 4
(“TPT”")} ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT WITH THE PRA GOVERNMENT SERVICES D/B/A REVENUE
DISCOVERY SYSTEMS (“RDS") TO PERFORM COMPREHENSIVE REMITTANCE PROCESSING AND
COMPLIANCE FOR TPT TAXES, USE TAXES, BED TAXES AND ANY OTHER TAXES AS DESIGNATED BY THE
CITY AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THIS RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

TO EXIST

PRESENTATION BY ROB JONES AND ETHAN ORR ON THE LINKAGE PROGRAM TO HELP DISABLED Handout

PERSONS WITH EMPLOYMENT
Consideration and/or discussion on the presentation by Rob Jones and Ethan O on the Linkage program to help

disabled persons with employment.

DISCUSSION/DECISION REGARDING APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2009:2010 ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT Tab 5
Consideration, discussion and/or decision regarding approval of FY2009-2010 Annual Audit Report

DISCUSSION/DECISION REGARDING RESPONSE LETTER FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2010 ANNUAL Tab 6

AUDIT
Consideration, discussion and/for decision regarding the response letter for the FY2010 Annual Augit.

DISCUSSION/ DECISION REGARDING THE APPOINTMENT OF CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO THE Tab7
ADVISORY BOARD SET UP BY CITY AND NORTHERN COCHISE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL (NCCH)
Consideration, discussion andfor decision regarding the appointment of City representatives to the Advisory Board set up

by the City and NCCH.

DISCUSSION REGARDING CONSENT ORDER FROM ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL  Tab 8
QUALITY & CONTROL (AZDEQ) CONCERNING THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT (WWTP)
Consideration and/or discussion regarding the Consent Order from AZDEQ concerning the WWTP.

REPORTS BY THE CITY MANAGER PAT McCOURT Tab9
Consideration, discussion and/or decision regarding the following topics by the City Manager:
- Report on Wilicox High Basketball Teams
- Report on Employee Luncheon-Community Center on Friday, December 10, 2010
- Report on Apple Festival & Christmas Tree Lighting Parade-Held on December 3 & 4, 2010
- Report on Rotary Raffle-Tickets on Sale!
- Report on Chamber Annual Meeting-to be held on December 14, 2010 at 6:00 p.m, KIVA Room RSVP
needed for dinner $20.00
- Report on City Offices Ciosed Holidays-All City Offices (except Public Safety) will close at noon on Thursday,
December 23 through 26% and open regular hours on Monday, December 271, Closed at noon on Thursday,
December 30 until January 2, 2011 for Observed Hofidays and open regular hours on Monday, January 3, 2011.
- Report on Notices Posted on Web site prior to changes to rates-New web site to include all notices that
rates will be considered for changes.
Report on Request For Qualifications (RFQ) on the WasteWater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Engineering
Services-the RFQ for the WWTP Engineering Services due January 7, 2011 at 3:00 p.m.



17. COMMENTS NOT FOR DISCUSSION FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS.

18. ADJOURN.
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Misc., Tab: .

NOTE: Documentation (if any) for items listed on the Agenda is available for public inspection, a minimum of 24 hours prior to
the Council Meeting, at any time during regular business hours in the Office of the City Clerk, 101 S. Railroad Avenue, Suite
B, Willcox, AZ or the Elisie S. Hogan Community Library during regular business hours Monday-Saturday and beginning July

2010 on the City's website www.cityofwillcox.orq .

NOTE: People with disabilities may request reasonable accommodations. Requests must be made 48 hours prior to the
meeting by contacting City Hall at 384-4271 during regular business hours 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.
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CITY OF WILLCOX
EXECUTIVE SESSION

AGENDA

MONDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2010
| 7:00 p.m.
300 W. REX ALLEN DRIVE
Willcox, Arizona

. CALL TO ORDER

. ROLL CALL

. CONSIDERATION OF ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 38-431.03(A)(3) — DISCUSSION OR
CONSULTATION FOR LEGAL ADVICE WITH THE ATTORNEY OR ATTORNEYS OF THE

PUBLIC BODY
Consideration and/or discussion pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes §38-431.03(A)(3), as stated

relating to consultation with the City Attorney(s) of the public body.

. ADJOURN

“Mine, Yours, Ours”



NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE SESSION
CITY COUNCIL

In accordance with Resolution No. 370 of the City of Willcox, and Section 38-431.01
of the Arizona Revised Statutes NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the
MAYOR AND COUNCIL of the City of Willcox, County of Cochise, Arizona, will
hoid an EXECUTIVE SESSION, if approved, during the REGULAR meeting on
MONDAY, the 6™ day of DECEMBER 2010 at 7:00 p.m.. in the
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 300 W. REX ALLEN DRIVE, Willcox, AZ

Item for Consideration and Discussion are:

A.R.S. §38.431.03A(3) DISCUSSION OR CONSULTATION FOR LEGAL. ADVICE
WITH THE ATTORNEY OR ATTORNEYS OF THE PUBLIC BODY

Consideration and/or discussion regarding consultation for legal advice with the
Attorney or Attorney’s of the public body.

DATED AND POSTED this 1°7_day of DECEMBER 2010 at 4:45 P.M.

CI'? OF WI LLCOX),j\RiZONA

' , e
18! CRISTINA G. WHELAN, CMC
CiTY CLERK CRISTINA G. WHELAN, CMC

“Mine, Yours, Ours”



THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLCOX, COCHISE COUNTY, AZ
HELD ON THIS 4™ DAY OF OCTOBER 2010

CALL TO ORDER -Mayor Gerald W. Lindsey called the regular meeting to order on Monday, October 04, 201¢ at 7:00 p.m.
Welcomed all to Council meeting this evening and good to see “a few shining faces” and welcomed all to come any time.

ROLL CALL-City Clerk Cristina G, Whelan, CMC, called the rofl: 7//%,6 ,2,
PRESENT STAFF
Mayor Gerald W. Lindsey City Manager Pat McCourt
Vice Mayor Monika Cronberg City Clerk Cristina G. Whelan, CMC
Councitman Elwood A. Johnson Library Director Tom Miner
Councilman Stephen Kiump Finance Director Ruth Graham
Councilman Christopher Donahue Public Services & Works Director Dave Bonner

Councilman William "Bill" Holloway
Councilman Robert “Bob” irvin

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG-Mayor Lindsey.

CALL TO THE PUBLIC- Mr. Paul Sheats addressed the Mayor and Council and thanked them for alf they are doing. His next
planned event is Harvest Fest on Halloween night at the Community Center and is inviting anyone that wants to pull together
and participate. Eight churches have joined and they are not asking the Council to waive the rental fees. The initial fee has
been paid and insurance. Mr, Sheats invited all to come down and meet people, youth and encourage kids and anyone else
to joinin. The event starts at 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. on Sunday, October 315!

DECL-ARATION ON CONFLICT OF INTEREST-Councilman Donahue dectared confiict of interest on all items relating to the
Consent Agenda. There was no further response from the Mayor, Council members or staff.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA
MOTION: Councilman Johnson moved to adopt the agenda as presented,
SECONDED: Councilman Holloway seconded the motion. CARRIED.

DISCUSSION/DECISION ENTER EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES § 38-431.03A(3)
DISCUSSION OR CONSULTATION FOR LEGAL ADVICE WITH THE ATTORNEY OR ATTORNEYS OF THE PUBLIC
BODY I

City Manager Pat McCourt spoke eariier this evening with the City Attomey Hector Figueroa who has an emergency and is
available by phone if needed. There is no reason at this time for an Executive Session.

RECESS-TO-EXECUTIVE SESSIONIF-ARRROVED
REGONVENE-FROM-EXECUTIVE SESSION

10. CONSENT AGENDA
ltems that are considered to be routine by the City Council will be enacted by one motion without discussion. The
consent agenda is a timesaving device and Council members have received documentation on these items for their
review prior to the open meeting. Any Councilmember may remove any item from the consent agenda for discussion
and a separate vote as desmed necessary. The public may view the documentation relating to the consent agenda 24
hours prior to the meeting at the City Clerk's Office, 101 S. Railroad Avenue, Suite B, Willcox, AZ from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30
p.m. or at the Elsie S. Hogan Library, 100 N. Curtis Avenue during normal working hours Monday-Saturday.

10A. THE REGULAR MEETING HELD ON SEPTEMBER 20, 2010




THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLCOX, COCHISE COUNTY, AZ
HELD ON THIS 4™ DAY OF OCTOBER 2010

10B. RESOLUTION NO. 2010-99 APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)
BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE NORTHERN COCHISE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL. A HOSPITAL DISTRICT, FOR

THE PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR SENIOR CITIZENS AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY TO EXIST.

10C. RESOLUTION NO. 2010-100 APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE TWIN LAKES GOLF COURSE LEASE 2010
AMENDMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILLCOX [“LESSOR"] AND JOHN PETERSON AND BETTY PETERSON

D.B.A. ENCORE CATERING UNLIMITED, L.L.C. [“LESSEE"] AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE

THIS RESOLUTION AND THE LEASE 2010 AMENDMENT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY TO EXIST

10D. RESOLUTION NO. 2010-101 RATIFYING, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF THE

APPLICATION TO THE ARIZONA STATE LIBRARY [“ASL"] UNDER THE SGIA-CONSTRUCTION GRANT
PROGRAM FOR A QUALIFYING AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT [“ADA"] RENOVATION PROJECT AND

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY TO EXIST,

10E. RESOLUTION NO. 2010-103 APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE ASSIGNMENT AND CONSENT AGREEMENT

FOR THE FORT GRANT CONNECTIVITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT BY AECOM USA, INC. [“ASSIGNOR"] TO
AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. [“ASSIGNEE"] AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THIS
RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY TO EXIST

MOTION: Councifman Johnson moved fo adopt the consent agenda items as presented.
SECONDED: Councilman Klump seconded the motion. CARRIED 6-0-1 Declared Conflict of Interest Councilman Donahue.

PRESENTATION BY REVENUE DISCOVERY SYSTEMS

City Manager Pat McCourt stated he attended this presentation at the Annual League Conference and Finance Director Ruth
Graham will do the infroductions. Ms. Graham introduced Mr. Rob Heimbuch and thanked them for opportunity to stop by and
visit with Mayor and Council. Explained what they are about and what they are running in the State of Arizona. Few faces he
has seen at the Annual League of Arizona Cities & Towns. Working with Bullhead City who was their first customer and
Revenue Discovery Systems (RDS) a few years ago talked about what they are doing in Arizona, He presented a slide
presentation and brief overview how came to Arizona and relationship with the League. Meet 2.5 years ago with Ken
Strobeck and Tom Belsche and presented what their company does and if felt market in Arizona. Mr. Belsche was tasked to
research them and response. They have been in Alabama since 1980 and in Louisiana, Texas, District, Puerto Rico, Georgia

and moving West to Arizona and California.

RDS is govemment Service Company provides management services to the public section, It is Tax Administration and
become the Arizona Department of Revenue (ADOR). Rather than contract with ADOR collect taxes they collect them and
City's employee. Currently the City receives a huge report monthly from ADOR. They now have 1/3 less people than they
had a couple years ago. Use Retail, Restaurant and not names since that is Confidential. The report is much more
manageable. They will give staff more information to make better decisions. Taxpayers remit to Alabama instead of Phoenix
and now 2-forms rather than one. The State Tax form goes to State and Wilicox Tax will go to Burmingham, Alabama, They
encourage on-fine filing. Make fife simpler because when fill out form the first time there is field Gross Sales and next month
put dollar amount and calculates everything. Still have exemptions and have to do that, There are 13-15 Self Collecting and
their tax payers have to fili out 2-forms, That is inconvenience but big positive. They are not Arizona Model City Tax Experts
and that is not their function they are trying to collect dollars that belongs to the City's bank account. The Tax Code is on their
computer screens in Alabama and able to answer some questions. Your City Auditor and City Attorney are there to answer
questions. They only observe 4-Holidays, Christmas, Thanksgiving, New Years and 4t of July otherwise they are open.
Open 7-5 Arizona time Monday-Friday. If not open leave message and they will retum the call the next working day.

Revenue Discovery Recovery is what they first do when take client on. That is part of 80 day implementation and will take
from Wilicox and ADOR data base and match that with City's and do a scrub. May have Arizona License but forgot to pay City
of Willcox and they will find those during implementation process or annually at a different fee. Receivable Management is

Debt Collection and they are owned by Portfolio Associates



THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLCOX, COCHISE COUNTY, AZ
HELD ON THIS 4™ DAY OF OCTOBER 2010

The Proposed Contract is 5-years and first is 1.05% of the monthly fee and deducted from payment before sent and year's 4-5
rate is 1.20%. There is no intemet and every staff is addressing that.

City Manager McCourt stated staff has no faith in the ADOR and we are not getting the service nor are the businesses and
see this as vast improvements. Staff thinks this is better for our Community and the City runs more efficient. Mayor Lindsey
asked a hypothetical question: John Doe Appliance is suspected of not paying sales tax and the City asks them fo audit what
the cost will be to the City. Mr. Heimbuch replied $85/hour when they walk-in fo do Audit. Mayor Lindsey agreed the
immediate benefit is the reporis which show who did or did not pay and how much. Mr, Heimbuch explained that the decision
is up to staff to determine to call for an Audit. Councilman Klump asked if State charges City to collect our taxes. Pricing
model is based on the other 48 states. Mayor Lindsey asked if at the present ime is the State doing any auditing and Mr.
Heimbuch said “they are not.” The State is down 33% of its workers. Councilman Donahue asked how this effects the
collection of taxes during special events when they put all the vendors under one license Mr. McCourt replied each of those
vendors should have tax number and should report sold in our community. Mr. Heimbuch added anybody that holds event
should have ficense. Councilman Klump said the State used to do quarterly and with this company form on or off months, Mr.
Heimbuch replied RDS prefers it that way and because of SASB 70 they will call businesses and walk them through and send

those 3-months to do on-line.

Mayor Lindsey thanked Mr. Heimbuch for the presentation and he thanked the Mayor and Council for opportunity, Mr.
Heimbuch aiso leams from questions asked and staff has his card and is here to answer questions and if not he will get the

answers.

Mayor Lindsey directed staff to go ahead and look at process and refine a littie better and bring that back to Mayor and
Council for consideration.

DISCUSSION/DECISION REGARDING RESOLUTION NO. 2010-102 APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE TWIN LAKES
GOLF COURSE LEASE ASSIGNMENT BY JOHN PETERSON AND BETTY PETERSON D.B.A. ENCORE CATERING
UNLIMITED. L.L.C. [“ASSIGNOR"} TO JASON AND CARRIE JONES D.B.A. JNC VENTURES, LLC [“ASSIGNEE"] AND
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THIS RESOLUTION, THE LEASE ASSIGNMENT AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY TO EXIST

MOTION: Councilman Johnson moved fo approve Resolution No. 2010-102, as stated, relating to the Twin Lakes Golf Course
Lease Assignment by John and Betty Peterson DBA Encore Catering Unlimited, LL.C to Jason and Carrie Jones DBA JNC
Ventures, LLC.

SECONDED: Councitman Donahue seconded the motion. DISCUSSION: Vice Mayor Cronberg commented on the passion
of the letter from Jason Jones presented and appreciates all here and willing todoit. CARRIED.

DISCUSSION/DECISION REGARDING RESOLUTION NO. 2010-104 TO RATIFY, APPROVE AND ADOPT THE
CONTRACT AMENDMENTS NO:; 3 AND 4 BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILLCOX [“CITY"] AND AECOM TECHNICAL
SERVICES, INC, (“AECOM”) FOR POST DESIGN SERVICES AND PROFESS!ONAL CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
SERVICES FOR THE FORT GRANT CONNECTIVITY ENHANCEMENT PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE THIS RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY TO EXIST.

MOTION: Councilman Johnson moved to approve Resolution NO. 2010-104. as stated, to ratify, approve and adopt the
Contract Amendments No. 3 and 4 between the City and AECOM for Post Design Services and Professional Construction
Management Services for the Ft. Grant Connectivity Enhancement Project.

SECONDED: Counciiman Donahue seconded the motion. DISCUSSION: Councilman Johnson stated this has been along
time coming. Councilman Klump said this $417,000 asked if that falls within and Mr. Bonner replied that is the grant. Mr.
Bonner said the remaining portion $81,508 was previously approved and paid for the Environmental Studies. Councliman
Kiump said then we have no more outiay and Mr. Bonner said we have $23,813 or 5.7% of project and that is requirement.
Councilman Johnson stated that is in-kind as well right? And Mr. Bonner replied believes all in-kind. Councilman Klump Pat
said paying for that from Highway Users Fund. The eartier amount of $81,000 has already been paid from Local Highway

Users Fund. CARRIED.




THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLCOX, COCHISE COUNTY, AZ
HELD ON THIS 4™ DAY OF OCTOBER 2010

DISCUSSION REGARDING THE JUNE 30, 2010 INVESTMENT REPORT

Finance Director Graham reported this is snap shot of cash balances as of June 30. This report does not necessarily reflect
the activity for the year. Staff has complied with the directive from Council in our Industrial Park. The primary objective of the
City is safety and collateralization. Safety has 2-CD’s fully insured CDARS, we have money in the Local Govemment
Investment Pool 700; CDARS money market .25% eamings and just moved $2.3M back to which is 1.05%. The goal is not o
tie the money up too much until we see if rates will improve. This snap shot is as of June 30 and on September 30 will show
projections and audit. City Sales Tax came in higher than projections. At the first meeting in November staff will have the

September 30t reports on the first quarter,

REPORTS BY THE CITY MANAGER PAT McCOURT

Consideration, discussion and/or decision regarding the following topics by the City Manager:

- Report on the Willcox High School Football Team-the Cowboys beat Pima Roughriders 34-0; next game anticipated
difficuit game in Morenci Wildcats and Cowboys ended up on top 36-6. Encouraged all to attend game on Friday against
Tombstone and it is also Homecoming.

- Report on City Clean Up Day-held on Saturday, September 25, 2010; and big lots are being cleaned due to Code
Enforcement. Working on getting iarge lots in town and Jeff ill and no report.

- Report on Rex Allen Days- 59" Annual Rex Allen Days held! Had a lot of work to do and had enjoyable time. Saturday
night Show was 3-hours none stop.

- Report on Senior Center-Ribbon Cutting held and Open House.

- Report on Public Safety Ordinance and schedule work sessions-draft Public Safety Ordinance ready and next work
session at 6:00 p.m. on Monday, October 18, 2010. Had scheduled a Solid Waste meeting but the City Manager is
scheduled fo be out-of-town and staff wilt hold work session on the Public Safety Ordinance. There are two (2) new areas
(1) fireworks and (2) Social Hosting that is term used when adults allow minors to have parties and do iflegal activity at their

homes/residences.
- Report on Skate Park Board Meeting- meeting was heid on September 21, 2010. Went over where we are, what we are

doing, where we are at, and what is next step.

- Report on Library New Technology Tools Presentation-Library presents information on New Technology Tools Library
“guru” is not here and wait until November 15t meeting.

- Report on the AMRRP bulletin-Article regarding Reality Check (School Violence) and how we have to get ready for that.
There is more that always needs to be done,

- Report City Manager to ICMA Training-the City Manager will be gone from the 15% through the 20t of October to attend
the ICMA training in San Jose, CA. During that time Chief Weaver is Acting City Manager.

COMMENTS NOT FOR DISCUSSION FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL. MEMBERS.

Councilman Holloway enjoyed weekend during Rex Allen Day's, lots of people, very well run and appreciates staff help.
Councilman Donahue enjoyed the weekend festivities and understands good time was had by all.

Vice Mayor Cronberg thanked everyone that worked, behind and in front of the scenes.

Mayor Lindsey echoed those comments. There were lots of people in town, atiendance better than last few years; lots of
activities well attended and well represented. Lots of local people parficipated in events to help make it a success.

Johnson echoed the same as far as the success. Participation of the community and comments received from outside from
the stars they want to come back, they had a lot of fun and no where else they could find atmosphere of Westem Heritage and
loving people and kudos to Rex Allen Days and successful 59" and next year 60t and Arizona's Anniversary and it should be

huge.
Councilman frvin stated he is glad it is over with! Congratulations to Councilman Holloway and meet a lovely woman this

weekend and tumns out to be his fiancé.
Mayor Lindsey announced that the Extended Hands Ministry fioat was presented the Mayor's Award!

ADJOURN
There being no further business before the Mayor and Council, Mayor Lindsey adjoumed the meeting at 8:18 p.m.



THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLCOX, COCHISE COUNTY, AZ
HELD ON THIS 4™ DAY OF OCTOBER 2010

CERTIFICATION
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the regular meeting of the City Council of

the City of Willcox held on the 4t day of October 2010. 1 further certify that the meeting was duly called and held, and that a

quorum was present,
Dated this 30t day of November 2010

City Clerk Cristina G. Whelan, CMC

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of 2010.

MAYOR GERALD W. LINDSEY
Signed: ;

ATTEST:

City Clerk Cristina G. Whelan, CMC
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AMENDED
CITY OF WILLCOX RESOLUTION NO: 2010-116

AMENDED RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILLCOX,
COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE
DISTRIBUTION OF ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION LOCAL TRANSPORTATION
ASSISTANCE FUNDS {[“LTAF H”] TO SELECTED
RECIPIENTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FUNDING
SPECIFIC PROJECTS AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR
TO EXECUTE THIS RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY TO EXIST

WHEREAS, the CITY submitted an application and has received a Local Transportation
Area Funds Award in the amount of $3,152.25 that requires a 25% local match which will
provided by selected recipients receiving local funding distributions; and,

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council considered the funding distributions for
NORTHERN COCHISE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL [“NCCH?”] senior transportation services,
and the WILLCOX UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT [“WUSD”] activity busing program at their
November 15", 2010 Council Meeting; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council passed and approved Resolution No: 2010-116 with
amended funding distributions to selected recipients on a 50/50 basis and now desire to ratify,
approve and adopt this AMENDED Resolution 2010-116; and,

WHEREAS, Mayor and Council desire to have this Resolution presented at its Council
meeting on December 6%, 2010; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the preservation of the peace, health, and safety of the
City of Willcox, Cochise County, Arizona, that an emergency be declared to exist to assure
timely distribution of LTAF II funds, and that this Resolution shall be effective immediately
upon its passage and adoption,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF WILLCOX,
COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the CITY formally approves the selection of local recipients and
distributions to selected providers with $1,576.13 to be distributed to NCCH senior
transportation services and $1,576.12 to distributed to WUSD activity busing program with the
stipulation that each local recipient is responsible for the 25% match requirement.



Section 2: That the immediate operation of the provisions of this Resolution is necessary
for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety, an emergency is hereby declared to
exist, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its ratification and
passage by the City of Willcox, Cochise County, Arizona.

Section 3: That the Mayor is authorized and empowered to execute this AMENDED
Resolution and City staff are directed to act for the purpose of making funding distributions as
authorized pursuant to AMENDED Resolution 2010-116.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLCOX, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA this day of December, 2010.

APPROVED/EXECUTED:

MAYOR, GERALD W. LINDSEY

ATTEST:

City Clerk, Cristina G. Whelan, CMC

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney, Hector M. Figueroa, Esq.

AMENDED RESOLUTION NO. 2010-116



CITY OF WILLCOX

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
Agenda item / 0%
Tab Number
Date: __12/6/2010
Date Submitted: Action: Subject:
November 30, 2010 : Transaction Privilege Tax
£ gedszglaurtllon (TPT} Administration
v STGINENCE Agreement with PRA
Formal Government Services
Other d/bfa RDS
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL
FROM: Finance Director Ruth Graham
DISCUSSION:

Currently the City participates as a program city under the Model City Tax Code for purposes of the collection
of City sales tax. Under an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), the Arizona Department of Revenue
(ADOR) collects City transaction privilege (sales) taxes on our behalf. Due to budget limitations, the State has
reduced the staff available to manage sales tax collections. If a change is made for Willcox to become a non-
program City, we will need to provide the ADOR with a 90 day notice of such intent. A copy of the letter is

provided for your information.

PRA Government Services d/b/a RDS is a provider that offers an alternative method for transaction privilege
tax (TPT) coliection and monitoring services. Rob Heimbuch from Revenue Discovery Services (RDS) came
before the City Council on October 4, 2010 to present the program. On November 15, 2010 Mr. Heimbuch
and Tom Belshe, the Deputy Director of the Arizona League of Cities and Towns (League) came to the
Council. Mr. Belshe said that prior to endorsing RDS, the League conducted research on the company.
Bullhead City became the first Arizona City to work with RDS in February 2009. The staff at Bullhead City
indicated that RDS remits receipts more frequently than the State, provides better reporting on a timely basis,
and allows them to more effectively monitor sales tax collections.

At the November 15" meeting, the Council directed Staff to pursue negotiations for a contract with RDS.

The proposed contract is for a period of five years. The fee schedule for services appears in the contract. The
cost is 1.05% of gross revenues in year 1, 1.10% in year 2, 1.15% in year 3, and 1.20% in years 4 and 5.
Based on historical collections, the fee will be $25,000 to $30,000 per vear. If the agreement is approved, the
City will immediately provide the ADOR with a 90 day notice of intention to terminate collection services by
ADOR, and RDS will begin collection of the February TPT tax due in March, 201 1.

RDS will mail information packets to vendors, and hold outreach meetings to introduce the change. The
meetings are tentatively scheduled for the last week of January, 2011. RDS offers extended customer support
hours, and if a message comes in after hours or on the weekend will return calls within one business day. Ifa
vendor does not file a return, RDS will contact them by telephone to ask if the return was forgotten or
overlooked. TPT receipts will be remitted to the City as they are accrued. At the specific request of the City,
RDS will provide audit and/or collection services for a fee.



RECOMMENDATION:

Motion to approve Resolution No. 2010-120 authorizing the Mayor to sign the Transaction Privilege Tax
(TPT) Administration Agreement with PRA Government Services d/b/a RDS, and to provide the ADOR with a
90 day notice that a change will be made effective March 1, 2011 for tax collections for the month of February
2011, due March 20th.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: More timely receipt of TPT collections, increased customer service availability, and
better monitoring of sales tax collections.

Submitted by: Approved by:

R sk,

Ruth Graham, Finance Director




RESOLUTION NO. 2010-120

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF WILLCOX, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA
APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE TRANSACTION
PRIVILEGE TAX (“TPT”) ADMINISTRATION
AGREEMENT WITH THE PRA GOVERNMENT
SERVICES D/B/A REVENUE DISCOVERY SYSTEMS
(“RDS”} TO PERFORM COMPREHENSIVE
REMITTANCE PROCESSING AND COMPLIANCE FOR
TPT TAXES, USE TAXES, BED TAXES AND ANY OTHER
TAXES AS DESIGNATED BY THE CITY AND
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THIS
RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY TO
EXIST.

WHEREAS, AR.S. Section 42-6001 et seq. provides that the ADOR may collect and
administer any transaction privilege license tax or use tax imposed by any city or town and
provides for uniform audit functions including joint audits of a taxpayer by the ADOR and the
CITY where the taxpayer conducts business. The statute further provides that the ADOR and the
CITY may enter into an IGA to carry out the services in accordance with A.R.S. Section 42-
6001; and

WHEREAS, the CITY and the ADOR have entered into an existing Intergovernmental
Agreement (“IGA™) for services pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, as authorized by their legislative or
governing bodies; and

WHEREAS, the IGA between ADOR and the CITY includes Section 15 on pages 8 and
9 titled “Term of Agreement and Termination” enumerating the procedure for “Notice to
Terminate” to be provided by the CITY to ADOR; and

WHEREAS, the CITY must provide notice, in writing, to ADOR not Jater than ninety
(90) days prior to the expiration of the term then in effect pursuant to Section 15 of the ADOR
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the CITY and ADOR must enter into a new IGA concerning status change
from a “Program City” to a “Non-Program City”; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 42-6053, the CITY is empowered to modify or amend
the Model City Tax Code and is required to submit the proposed modification or amendment to
the Municipal Tax Code Commission for review and recommendation at least sixty (60) days
before adopting any modification or amendment; and

1



WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 42-6054, the CITY shall not adopt any modification or
amendment to the model city tax code unless the city holds a public hearing on the proposed
action before modification or amendment becomes effective; and

WHEREAS, the CITY shall also pass and adopt an Ordinance related to an Amendment
to the Model City Tax Code for Self Collection thus changing status from a “Program City” o a
“Non-Program City”; and

WHEREAS, it is the mutual desire of the CITY and RDS to enter into a TPT
Administration Agreement to provide a uniform self collection method of administration,
collection, audit and licensing of transaction privilege tax, use tax, severance tax, jet fuel excise
tax and rental occupancy taxes imposed by the State or Cities or Towns in accordance with the
Model City Tax Code; and

WHEREAS, the General Provisions of the Agreement provides for compliance with the
Disclosure of Information by the CITY and the RDS in accordance with Medel City Tax Code,
section 510 and A.R.S. Sections 42-2001, 42-2003 and 42-2004 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the General Provisions of the Agreement provides for compliance with the
Storage and Destruction of Confidential Information by the CITY and the RDS in accordance
with A.R.S. Sections 42-2001, 42-2003 and 42-2004 et seq. and 26 USC Section 6103(p)(4)(I}
(Internal Revenue Code Section 6103(p)(4)(F}; and

WHEREAS, the TPT Agreement provides for Delegation of Authority to RDS for the
collection of the taxes and audits except for those audits that are conducted by the CITY auditor
or by an independent contract auditor hired by the RDS; and

WHEREAS, the TPT Agreement provides for each party to accept responsibility for its
compliance with federal, state, or local laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, Secction C (5) and (6) of the RDS TPT Agreement provides for
consideration for Remittance Processing Services, Revenue Analysis Services, Compliance
Services and Optional Service Offerings; and

WHEREAS, the RDS TPT Agreement provides for a term of five (5) years effective
following the date of execution or the maximum period allowed by law, whichever is shorter.
Either party shall have the right of terminate this Agreement. Any such termination may be made
only by providing ninety (90) days written notice to the other party, specifically identifying the
breach or breaches on which termination is based. Following receipt of such notice, the party in
breach shall have thirty (30) days to cure such breach or breaches. In the event that such cure is
not made, this Agreement shall terminate in accordance with the initial ninety (90) days notice;

and



WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Willcox desire to have this
Resolution presented at its December 6%, 2010 Council Meeting for the purpose of approving
and adopting the RDS TPT Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have determined that formal action on this
Resolution is in the best interest of the CITY, its citizens and its affected taxpayers; and,

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the preservation of the peace, health, and safety of the
City of Willcox, Cochise County, Arizona, that an emergency be declared to exist to assure
timely implementation of the required steps to formalize the self collection process, and that this
Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage and adoption.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF WILLCOX,
COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the CITY formally approves Resolution 2010-120 for the purpose of
approving and adopting the Agreement with RDS for services as outlined in the Agreement.

Section 2: That the Mayor is authorized and empowered to execute this Resolution, the
RDS TPT Agreement and the written notice of termination to ADOR as presented.

Section 3: City Staff are authorized and directed to prepare and to submit written notice
of termination to ADOR as outlined in this Resolution and as required by the ADOR [GA.

Section 4: That the immediate operation of the provisions of this Resolution is necessary
for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety, an emergency is hereby declared to
exist, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage by the City of
Willcox, Cochise County, Arizona.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLCOX, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA this day of December, 2010.

APPROVED/EXECUTED:

MAYOR GERALD W. LINDSEY

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Cristina G. Whelan, CMC, City Clerk Hector M. Figueroa, Esq., City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-120
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Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT) Administration

Agreement
This agreement is made as of the day of December, 2010 , by and between PRA
Government Services d/b/a RDS (and/or its affiliates) and City of Willcox, Arizona, an Arizona CITY

("CITY"),

A. Remittance Processing Services

1

Taxes Processed: RDS will perform comprehensive remittance processing and compliance for
the Transaction Privilege (TPT) Taxes, Use Taxes, Bed Taxes and any other taxes as designated
by the CITY.

Taxpayer Notification and Remittance: RDS will send individualized tax forms to all known
taxpayers. Taxpayers will remit payments to City of Willcox, P.O. Box 830725, Birmingham, AL
35283-0725. Upon reasonable notice to CITY, RDS may change the P.O. Box for City of Willcox
payments.

Deposit Process: Deposits are made to the extent that funds have been received, via Automated
Ciearing House (ACH) of the amounts and to the designated recipients as instructed by the CITY
for each type of tax collected, as shown in more detail on Exhibit A.

Posting Process: Taxpayer accounts are posted with payment information capiured in the RDS
revenue system. Late payments (postmarked by U.S. Postal Service after due date) are invoiced
at penalty amounts required by State code. Under payments are invoiced for remaining tax due
plus any required penaities.

Changes to Exhibit A: CITY shall notify RDS in writing immediately of all changes in amounts to
be deposited into the accounts of designated recipients. An amended Exhibit A shall be
prepared and executed by the Parties as soon as reasonably possible. In addition, RDS shall
provide documentation confirming each change under the preceding senterice with the first
monthly report reflecting the applicable change. If the changes reflected in the monthly report do
not properly refiect the intended changes of the CITY, then the CITY shall immediately notify RDS
and, thereafter, RDS shall take the steps hecessary fo insure that designated recipients receive
the amounts intended by CITY.

Notification, Reporting to CITY:

i RDS will provide CITY with monthly reports including, but not limited to, payment listings
showing ali taxes received related to net receipts reported, a general ledger distribution that
corresponds to CITY'S account numbers, any andfor all other available reports requested
City, and all fees paid to RDS. These reports will be provided by the 10th of the month
following the tax month;

ii.  CITY AGREES TO EXAMINE THIS REPORT IMMEDIATELY. IF NO ERROR IS
REPORTED BY THE CITY TO RDS WITHIN 60 DAYS, THE STATEMENT WILL BE
DEEMED ACCURATE;

iii.  Allitems credited will be subject to receipt of payment; and

iv. RDS will attend Council meetings at such times as may be reasonably requested by CITY.

B. Compliance Services

1.

Taxes Reviewed: RDS will perform compliance services for sales, use and other taxes
designated by CITY under Remittance Processing Services. RDS will provide delinquency
notification and follow-up. This includes correspondence, calls, and collection procedures and
the related documentation. Delinquency policies and procedures will be applied consistently and
within applicable tax laws. Unless otherwise directed by CITY, RDS will make reasonable efforts
to collect taxes designated by CITY hereunder. Where deemed reasonably appropriate,
accounts may be turned over to audit or third party collection. If CITY elects to have its attorney



pursue collection of certain uncollected accounts, RDS will assist CITY attorney as reasonably
requested at its normal hourly rate as reflected herein.

Conduct of Compliance Services: To assure that all taxpayers are treated fairly and consistently
and all compliance services are performed in a similar manner, RDS representatives who perform
compliance services will use a similar compliance plan for each compliance service conducted.
All funds due from compliance services will be remitted to CITY in the same manner as provided
for pursuant to Secfion A, above.

C. General Provisions

L.

6.

Information Provided: CITY represents that the information provided to RDS in the performance
of services hereunder shall be provided free and clear of the claims of third parties. CITY
represents that it has the right to provide this information to RDS and that said information shall
not be defamatory or otherwise expose RDS to fiability to third parties.

Compliance with laws: Each Party accepts responsibility for its compliance with federal, state,
or local laws and regulations.

Taxpayer service: RDS will provide a taxpayer assistance number for taxpayer questions. RDS
will provide informational brochures for placement in CITY offices, Chamber of Commerce offices,
libraries and any other facilities. This information may also be available on the Internet at
www.revds.com.

Review and Appeal Process: RDS has adopted and will use a review and appeals process which
is based on the Arizona Taxpayers’ Bill of Rights Act.

Consideration for Remittance Processing Services, Revenue Analysis Services and Compliance

Services:

i.  Remittance Processing, Revenue Analysis Services, Compliance Fees. All fees due RDS
for services rendered will be determined on a monthly basis based on the formula resulting
in the lesser of possible fees due RDS. Tax proceeds collected by RDS on behalf of CITY
will be remitted to CITY net of fees due. RDS will note the formula applied in calculating the
fees charged CITY in a monthly report to CITY. The use of the formulas will be reconciled
quarterly.

= Taxes Collected Fee Formula. RDS will receive an amount equal to a percent of
gross revenues collected for providing remittance processing, compliance and
revenue analysis services based on the table listed below.

CONTRACT DATES PERCENT OF GROSS REVENUES
March 1 — February 29, 2012 1.05%
March 1 — February 28, 2013 1.10%
March 1 ~ February 28, 2014 1.15%
March 1~ February 28, 2015 1.20%
March 1 — February 28, 2016 1.20%

* Transactions Processed Fee Formula. RDS will receive an amount equal to
$3.50 per transaction where a transaction is defined to be a sales tax record
received from a taxpayer.

Optional Service Offerings:

i Considerations for Discovery and Recovery Services: RDS will receive an amount equal to
21 % (twenty-one percent) of gross revenues (including current or back tax dollars)
collected on all accounts that are identified as NOT being on current CITY tax rolls. RDS
will NOT be compensated on an account identified and brought current on a go-forward
basis.

ii. Consideration for Delinquent Collection Services: RDS will receive an amount equal to
21% (twenty-one percent} of gross revenues collected for accounts that are known as being
at least 270 days delinquent.

ii. RDS Audit Services: Audit Services as requested by the City include all preparation for the
performance of an audit, any research or statistical analysis performed in relation to an




7.

10.

audit, in-house audit/collection efforts, examination of the books and records of the
ta%payer, an assessment of the amount due (if any), and all services related to closing an
audit.

1. RDS Fee: RDS will receive an amount based on an hourly rate of eighty-five dollars
($85.00) for audit services. There shall be no contingent fees. Each year on the
anniversary date of this Agreement the hourly rate will increase the greater of (1) 3%
or (2) an amount based upon the consumer price index rate for Urban Wage Earners
and Clerical Workers, All ltems, as published by the United States lLabor
Department, Bureau of Labor Statistics (“CP!").

a. [f overnight travel or travel more than 25 miles beyond origination
point is required, RDS will pay the auditor and bill the CITY for its
portion of travel expenses. CITY agrees to pay the amount of these
fees when due, regardless of any recovery.

b. Billing Increment: Time will be recorded in 15-minute intervals (.25
hours);

c. Shared Audit Fees: When audits for CITY overlap with audits for
other RDS clients or clients of RDS Affiliates, the fees will be shared
as follows:

i. Travel Time: travel time, expenses, and a daily per diem
amount for each audit is distributed evenly among the
clients reviewed for each audit.

i. Interview Time: time billed during the initial interview of
each audit is distributed evenly amongst the clients
reviewed for each audit ~ during this process the auditor
determines which clients will actually be audited for and
hilled Audit Time as follows;

1. Audit Time: Time billed during the actual audit stage of

each audit is billed according to actual time spent working

for each client;

2. No Double Billing: In no event will the overlapping
audits combined require payment for more than 100%
for any one RDS representative.

Company Audit: Once a year RDS will have an auditor prepare an independent Service Auditor's
Report on Controls Placed in Operation and Tests of Operating Effectiveness. This report is
commonly called a SAS 70 Type il report and will be made available upon request.

Term of the Agreement: This Agreement shall be for a term of five (5) years following the date of
execution or the maximum period allowed by law, whichever is shorter. Either party shall have
the right to terminate this Agreement. Any such termination may be made only by providing
ninety (90) days written notice to the other party, specifically identifying the breach or breaches on
which termination is based. Following receipt of such notice, the party in breach shall have thirty
(30) days to cure such breach or breaches. In the event that such cure is not made, this
Agreement shall terminate in accordance with the initial ninety (90) days notice.

Effect of Termination: Notwithstanding non-renewal or termination of this Agreement, CITY shall
be obligated to pay RDS for services performed through the effective date of termination for
which RDS has not been previously paid. In addition, because the services performed by RDS
prior to termination or non-renewal of this Agreement may result in the CITY's receipt of revenue
after termination which are subject to RDS' fee, the CITY shall remain obligated after termination
or non-renewal to provide to RDS such information as is necessary for RDS to calculate
compensation due as a result of the receipt of revenue by the CITY. The CITY shall remain
obligated to pay RDS’ invoices therefore in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Indemnity: To the fullest extent alfowed by law, RDS hereby agrees to indemnify and hold CITY
harmless from any claims and against all costs, expenses, damages, claims and liabilities based
upon or arising solely out of a breach of this Agreement by RDS. Except as set forth in the
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i2.

i3.

14,

15.

16.

17.

preceding sentence, to the full extent allowed by law, CITY hereby agrees to indemnify and hold
RDS harmless from any claims and against all costs, expenses, damages, claims and liabilities
relating in any way to sales, use and other taxes of CITY, including, but not limited to,
determination of taxes due from taxpayers, the collection thereof and any refunding related

thereto.,

Limitation of Liability: To the maximum extent permitied by law, in no event shall RDS, its
employees, contractors, directors, affiliates and/ or agents be liable for any special, incidental or
consequential damages, such as, but not limited to, delay, lost data, disruption, and loss of
anticipated profits or revenue arising from or related to the services, whether liability is
asserted in contract or tort, and whether or not RDS has been advised of the possibility of any
such loss or damage. In addition, RDS’ total liability hereunder, including reasonable attorneys
fees and costs, shall in no event exceed an amount equal to the fee paid by the CITY for the
affected service to which the claim pertains. The foregoing sets forth the CITY’S exclusive
remedy for claims arising from or out of this Agreement. The provisions of this section allocate
the risks between RDS and the CITY and RDS' pricing reflects the allocation of risk and
limitation of liability specified hergin.

Equal Opportunity to Draft: The Parties have participated and had an equal opportunity to
participate in the drafting of this Agreement. No ambiguity shall be construed against any
Party upon a claim that that party drafted the ambiguous language.

Assignment: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties, their
successors; representatives and assigns. RDS shall not assign this Agreement, or delegate its
duties or obligations under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of CITY, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, RDS may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the consent of CITY to
any corporation or entity into which or with which RDS has merged or consolidated; any parent,
subsidiary, successor or affiliated corporation of RDS; or any corporation or entity which acquires
all or substantially all of the assets of RDS. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors or assigns.

Force Majeure: RDS shall not be in default of its obligations hereunder to the extent that its
performance is delayed or prevented by causes beyond its control, including but not fimited to
acts of God, government, weather, fire, power or telecommunications failures, inability to obtain
supplies, breakdown of equipment or interruption in vendor services or communications.

Subcontractors: RDS shall have the right to hire assistants as subcontractors or to use
employees to provide the Services required by this Agreement. RDS, in rendering performance
under this Agreement shall be deemed an independent contractor and nothing contained herein
shall constitute this arrangement to be employment, a joint venture, or a partnership. RDS shall
be solely responsible for and shall hold CITY harmless from any and all claims for any employee
reiated fees and costs including without limitation employee insurance, employment taxes,
workman’s compensation, withholding taxes or income taxes.

Inteflectual Property Rights: The entire right, title and interest in and to RDS' database and all
copyrights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks, trade names, and all other intelfectual property
rights associated with any and all ideas, concepts, techniques, inventions, processes, or works of
authorship including, but not limited to, all materials in written or other tangible form developed or
created in the course of this Agreement (collectively, the "Work Product") shall vest exclusively in
RDS. The foregoing notwithstanding, in no event shall any CiTY-owned data provided to RDS be
deemed included within the Work Product.

Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties hereto
and supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the Parties
respecting the subject matter contained herein. Said Agreement shall not be amended, altered,
or changed, except by a written Agreement signed by both Parties hereto.



EXHIBIT A
CITY DISTRIBUTION

December 1, 2010

Patrick McCourt

City Manager

City of Wilicox

101 South Railroad Avenue, Suite B
Wilicox, AZ 85643

Dear Patrick:

Please specify below how tax revenues are to be disbursed by RDS to City of Willcox. A voided
check or deposit slip must also accompany Exhibit A.

Agency Routing # Account # Distribution % | Tax Type/Rate Code
City of Willcox 122100024 (new acct) 100 Transaction Privilege Tax
City of Willcox 122100024 100 Use Tax
City of Willcox 122100024 100 Bed Tax

City of Willcox verifies that the deposit instructions set out above are correct. Also, if the City
woulld like to make changes in how future distributions are allocated, please contact me. Please be
advised that we can only make changes based on written documentation.

Thank you for your assistance. If you have any questions, or if | may be of assistance, please let
me know,

Sincerely Yours,

Connie Taylor

Client Relations Manager
RDS

205-423-4144 direct dial
205-423-4097 direct fax

| have reviewed the above distribution and verify that it is correct.

City of Willcox, Arizona
By:

Name;
Title:



18. Invalidity: If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason
be held fo be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof, and this Agreement shall be
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained thereof,
and this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had

never been contained herein.

19. Effective Date: The effective date for the performance of services under the terms of this
agreemenit shall commence March 1, 2011 with collection of February taxes to be remitted on or

before March 20, 2011.

iN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto as of the date first above written have duly executed this
Agreement,

RDS City of Willcox, Arizona
By: By:

Kennon Waithall
fts: President lts:

Date: Date:




CITY OF WILLCOX

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION ,
Agenda ltem 107\/

Tab Number ___ -5 .
Date: 12/06/10 .

‘Date Submitted: . . Action;: -
 November30,2010 Resolution
. Formal =
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL
FROM: Finance Director Ruth Graham

DISCUSSION:

Each year the City of Willcox undergoes an annual audit. Robyn Sibley, from the accounting firm of
Hinton Burdick Hall & Spilker, PLLC, will present the Fiscal Year 2009-2010 audit report for the

Council’s consideration,

Please see the following for a copy of the report and the power point presentation.

Submitted by: Approved by:

Ruth Graham, Finance Director Pat McCourt, City Manager







City of Willcox, AZ
Fiscal Year 2010
Audit Presentation

Presented December 6, 2010
By HintonBurdick CPAs & Advisots

Audit Reports

m Independent Auditors Report (Pg 1-2)
a Unqualified or “clean opinion”

® Report on Compliance and on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting (Pg 61)
m No material weaknesses noted.

m No significant deficiencies noted.







Audit Reports

m State Compliance Report (Pg 63)
m Unqualified or “clean opinion”

® However, there were instances of immaterial non-
compliance that are included with the findings and
recommendations.

Findings & Recommendations

See separate letter.

® Improvement from prior year — eliminated
several findings.

w Only findings for fiscal year 2010 wetre
compliance related




Findings & Recommendations

m 10-1: Adoption of Tax Levy.
® Should have been adopted by third Monday in
August. Was actually adopted on September 8t
m (7-5: Budgetary Compliance.
m No overruns in General fund — small overruns in
two nonmajor funds.
= (7-6: Fund Deficit and Interfund Payables.

® Sce graph. Continue efforts to elitninate and

consider alternatives or appropriation of other
funds.

Government Wide Financial Highlights

mTotal net assets (equity) wete
$14,550,041 at June 30, 2010 (pg 14).

mOver time, increases ot decreases in
net assets are an indicator of whether
the financial health of the City is
improving or detetiorating.




Government Wide Financial Highlights

‘mTotal net assets increased by 825,371
during fiscal year 2010 and by $991,467
during fiscal year 2009 (pg 15).

m Net governmental activities reported a
decrease of $295,507, excluding transfers and
m business-type activities reported an increase of

$1,120,878, excluding transfers.

u Governmental activities received $470,450 in
transfers from business-type activities.

Government Wide Financial Highlights

mGovernmental capital assets increased by
$282,402 net of disposals of $118,350 and
depreciation of $513,148 (pg 35).

mSignificant additions are as follows:
mCommunity Center - $385,187
mLibraty - $233,805




Government Wide Financial Highlights

mBusiness-type capital assets increased by
$212,326 net of depreciation of $229,221

(pg 36).
mSignificant additions ate as follows:

mWater system improvements -
$1,803,983 (including $1,723,852 of
construction costs for completion of
Well #2)

mSewer system improvements - $88,211
m(Gas system improvements - $§196,327

Government Wide Financial Highlights

w Governmental long-term debt decreased by

$458,238 (pg 37).

® Annual debt service payments for the fiscal
year were $457,255.

® Business-type long-tertm debt decteased by
$60,488 (pg 37).

® Annual debt service payments for the fiscal
year were $59,455.




Fund Financial Highlights

mThe General Fund reported expenditures in
excess of revenues (before transfers) of $647,111
(pg 50-51). Net transfers from other funds were
$416,068 resulting in a net decrease to fund
balance of $231,043.

m Actual resoutces received in the General Fund
were less than the budget by $82,739 while actual
expenditures were $516,712 less than the budget.

m At the end of the cutrent fiscal year, unteserved
fund balance for the General Fund was

$2,111,159 or 56% of total General Fund
expenditures, excluding transfers (Pg 16).

Fund Financial Highlights

w Total reserved fund balance in the Highway User
fund at the close of the year is $129,575 (Pg 16).

W Total reserved fund balance in the nonmajor
funds at the close of the year consists of $0 for
the Grants fund, $99,789 for the Special Revenue
fund, $66,117 for the Capital Projects fund, and
$159,338 for the debt service fund (Pg 54).




CITY OF WILL.COX, AZ
GENERAL FUND BALANCE SHEET TREND
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The General Fund shows a healthy fund balance with no
significant changes for the past 5 years. (Keep in mind that fund
balance represents equity based on a current measurement focus,
ie., capitzl assets and long-term debt are not considered)

CITY OF WILLCOX, AZ
GENERAL FUND CASH TREND
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The General Fund shows a healthy cash balance. The FY10 and
I'Y09 declines are cxpected since the City budgeted to reduce fand
batance by 615,784 in Y10 and by $523,960 in FY09.




CITY OF WILLCOX, AZ
GENERAL FUND
Revenue and Expenditure Trend
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The General fund revenues and expenditures are normatly expected
to break even over time. The past four years show expenditures in
excess of revenues which reflect expenditurces of excess revenues

received in prior years.

CITY OF WILLCOX, AZ
GAS FUND
Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
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The Gas fund shows steady increases from 2006-2008 with a
significant decline in FY09 and FY10 due to reductions in gas
prices. Operating marging between revenues and expenses have
been good duting FY10 and FY09.




CITY OF WILLCOX, AZ

GAS FUND - Cash Trend
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The Gas fund cash shows steady increases over 5
years and a healthy balance of unrestricted cash.
CITY OF WILLCOX, AZ
WATER FUND
Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
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The Water fund shows steady increases over 5 years and a
good margin between revenues and expenses.




CITY OF WILLCOX, AZ

WATER FUND - Cash Trend
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The Water fund cash shows an increase over 5 yeats
and a healthy balance of untestricted cash.
CITY OF WILLCOX, AZ
SEWER FUND
Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
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The Sewer fund shows steady increases over 5 years and an
improved margin between revenues and expenses,
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CITY OF WILLCOX, AZ

SEWER FUND - Cash Trend
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The Sewer fund cash shows a significant increase over the
last 4 years as a result of improved operating margins.
CITY OF WILLCOX, AZ
REFUSE FUND
Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
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The Refuse fund shows a consistent margin between
revenue and expenses over the past five years with 2 slight
decrease in the margin during FY08 due to a refund paid to
the School District,
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Dollars

CITY OF WILLCOX, AZ
REFUSE FUND - Cash Trend
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The Refuse fund has improved from having conststent cash
deficits to having a small cash surplus in FY10. [f operating
mazging are maintained, this tend should continue.

Questions?

Feel free to contact:

Mike Spilker:
Phone: 435-628-3663 ext 224
Email: mike @hintonburdick.com
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Thank You!

mThank you for the opportunity to
work with the City.

mThanks to Ruth Graham and Connie
Bonner and all those who assisted us
with this years audit.
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The Honorable Mayor and MaRK E. TreHENoR
City Council '
City of Willcox, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Willcox,
Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents, These basic financial staternents are the
responsibility of the City of Willcox, Arizona’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these basic financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Willcox, Arizona as of June 30, 2010, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29,
2010, on our consideration of the City of Willcox, Arizona’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the

results of our audit.
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The Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System information
and the budgetary informatjon for the General fund and major special revenue funds is not a required part
of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by Governmental Accounting
Standard Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
whole. The combining and individual fund and other schedules listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements
of the City of Willcox. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in -
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Michael K. Spilker, CPA
October 29, 2010



CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2010

As management of the City of Willcox (City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010. Please read it in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* Total assets (all funds Governmental and Business type) increased by $196,611. Total Liabilities
decreased by $628,760 which resulted in total assets in excess of total liabilities (net assets)
increasing by $825,371 at the close of the fiscal year 2010.

Net change in assets of Governmental Activities is $174,943.

¢ Capital outlays for Governmental Activities (including repayment of debt) exceeded depreciation in
the current year by $282,403. The City continued the Public Safety/Council Chamber complex.
Renovations were completed on the first planned phase of the City Library renovations project, and a
second phase to add a Solarium Room is planned for FY11.

* Total business-type revenues exceeded total business-type expenses by $650,428.

Total Governmental expenses exceeded Governmental revenue by $563,697.

® The General Fund reported expenses in excess of revenues (net of transfers) of $231,043 (reduction in
General Fund Balance),

* Actual General Fund resources received were $82,739 (2.6%) less than the final Budget.

* Actual General Fund expenditures, excluding other financing uses, were $516,712 (12.2%) less than
the final Budget.

* At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $2.1 million
or 57% of total General Fund FY 10 expenditures, (approximately 6 months of reserves), excluding
transfers

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The three components of the financial
statements are: (1) Government-wide financial statements which include the Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities. These statements provide information about the activities of the City as a
whole. (2) Fund financial statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as
what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s most significant
funds. (3) Notes to the financial statements.

Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities (Government-wide)

A frequently asked question regarding the City’s financial health is whether the year's activities
contributed positively to the overall City’s financial well-being. The Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that
helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the modified accrual
basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the
current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net assets and changes in them. Net assets, the difference between
assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the City’s financial health, or financial position, Qver time,
increases or decreases in net assets are an indicator of whether the financial health is improving or
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deteriorating. However, it is important to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in the
City’s tax base or condition of the City’s roads to accurately assess the overall health of the City.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, present information about the following:

¢ Government activities — All of the City’s basic services are considered to be governmental activities,
including general government, public safety, highways and streets, public works, culture and
recreation, community development and interest on long-term debt. Property taxes, sales tax,
intergovernmentai revenues and charges for services finance most of these activities.

* Proprietary activities/Business type activities — The City charges a fee to customers to cover all or
most of the cost of the services provided.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds—not the City
as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However,
management establishes many other funds which aid in the management of money for particular purposes
or meet legal responsibilities associated with the usage of certain taxes, grants, and other money. The
City’s two major kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting approaches as
explained below.

* Governmental funds — Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds.
Governmental funds focus on how resources flow in and out with the balances remaining at year-end
that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called the
modified accrual accounting method, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view
of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Government fund
information shows whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the City’s programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between
governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds in a reconciliation included with the Basic Financial Statements and in footnote

2.

* Proprietary funds — When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all
activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

Reporting the City’s Fiduciary Responsibilities

The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain amounts held on behalf of developers, donations for a
specific purpose and others. These fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary
Net Assets. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets are used for their intended purposes.
Therefore, fiduciary activities are excluded from the City’s other financial statements because the assets
can not be used to finance operations.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position. The City’s combined
assets exceed liabilities by $14.6 million as of June 30, 2010 as shown in the following condensed
statement of net assets. The City has chosen to account for its water, sewer, gas, and refuse operations in
enterprise funds which are shown as Business Activities.

City of Wilicox, Arizona
Statement of Net Assets

Govermmental

Business-type

Combined Total

activities activities
6£30/2010 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2009
Current and other assets $ 2,841,938 $ 3491905 $ 3082466 $ 2730616 $ 5924404 6,222,521
Capital assets 10,247,991 9,965,589 4,674,338 4,462,012 14,922,329 14,427 601
Total assets 13,089,929 13,457,494 7,756,804 7,192,628 20,846,733 20,650,122
Long-term liabilities outstanding 3719907 4,086,345 1,644,453 1,706,437 5,364,360 3,792,782
Other liabilities 690,434 866,504 241,898 266,166 932,332 1,132,670
Total labikities 4,410,341 4,952,849 1,886,351 1,972,603 6,296,692 6,925,452
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt 6,117,356 5,376,916 2,967,902 2,696,121 9,085,458 8,073,037
Restricted 450,873 986,821 - - 450,873 986,821
Unrestricted 2,111,159 2,140,908 2,902,551 2,523,904 5,013,710 4,664,812
Total net assets $ 8,679,588 5 8,504,645 $ 5,870,453 $ 5,220,025 $ 14,550,041 § 13,724,670

Governmental Activities

The cost of all Governmental activities this year was $4.9 million. As shown on the statement of Changes
in Net Assets on the following page, $120,771 of this cost was paid for by those who directly benefited
from the programs and $745785 was subsidized by grants received from other governmental
organizations for both capital and operating activities. General taxes and investment earnings totaled $3.8

million.

The City’s Governmental activities include General Government, Public Safety, Library, Highways and
Streets, Culture & Recreation, Grants, Community Development and Public Works. The business-type
activities include the Gas Utility, Water Utility, Sewer Utility and Refuse program. Each program’s
revenues and expenses are presented bhelow,



City of Willcox, Arizona

Changes in Net Assets
Goveranmental Business-type
activities activities Combined Total
6/30/2010 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2009
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services 3 120,771 3 147,246 $ 3,196,917 $ 3,055,387 % 3,317,688 $ 3,202,633
Operating grants and
contributions 362,059 540,852 - N 362,059 540,852
Capital grants and
contributions 383,726 206,481 19,192 7,403 402,918 213,884
General revenues:
Sales taxes 2,341,208 2,716,472 - N 2,341,298 2,716,472
Other taxes 851,805 900,578 - - 851,805 900,578
State revenue sharing 501,594 581,918 - - 501,594 581,918
Assessments 79,487 78,133 - - 79,487 78,133
Other 10,867 48,993 9,557 17,954 20,424 66,947
Total revenues 4,651,607 5,220,673 3,225,666 3,080,744 7,871,273 8,301,417
Expenses:
General government 768,967 914,307 - - 768,967 914,307
Public safety 1,784,874 1,717,431 - - 1,784,874 1,717,431
Highways and streets 853,247 838,919 - - 853,247 838,919
Culture and recreation 901,862 947,176 . - 901,862 947,176
Community development - 53,738 - - - 53,738
Public works 451,914 528,765 - - 451,914 528,765
Interest on long-term debt 186,250 203,651 - - 186,250 203,651
Gas - - 698,393 691,644 698,393 691,644
Water - - 426,882 447,681 426,882 447,681
Sewer - - 504,428 464,389 504,428 464,389
Refuse - - 475,085 502,249 475,085 502,249
Total expenses 4,947,114 5,203,987 2,104,788 2,105,963 7,058,902 7,309,950
(Decrease)/Increase in net assets
before transfers (295,507 16,086 1,120,878 974,781 825,371 991,467
Transfers 470,450 428,400 {470,450% {428,400 - -
Net assets, beginning 8,504,645 8,059,559 5,220,025 4,673,644 13,724,670 12,733,203
Net assets, ending $ 8,679,588 $ 8,504,645 $ 5,870,453 3 5,220,025 5 14,550,041 $ 13,724,670

Total governmental resources available during the year to finance governmental operations were $8.7
million, consisting of Net assets at July 1, 2009 of $8.5 million, Program revenues of $866,556, Transfers
of $470,450, and General revenues of $3.8 million, less total Governmental Activities expenses during the
year of $4.9 million; thus Governmental Net Assets were increased by $174,943 to $8.7 million.



The following graphs compare program expenses to program revenues and provide a breakdown of
revenues by source for all governmental activities;

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
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Business Type Activities

Net assets of the Business Type activities at June 30, 2010, as reflected in the Statement of Net Assets were
$5.9 million. As shown in the statement of Changes in Net Assets, the Total net assets at July I, 2009 were
$5.2 million. Amounts paid by users of the system were $3.2 million, $17,954 was subsidized by capital
grants and contributions, and interest earnings totaled $9,557. The cost of providing all Proprietary
(Business Type) activities this year was $2.1 million. Transfers to governmental activities were $470,450
and interest expense and fiscal charges were $74,850. The Net Assets increased by $650,428.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business- type Activities
{in Thousands)

MProgram Revenues

EExpenses
Gas Water Sewer Refuse
Revenue By Source - Business-type Activities
Refuscg
17.6% Gas
C31.2%
Sewer
- Water
24.2% -
v 27.0%



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. The following is a brief discussion of financial highlights from the fund financial

statements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the City’s governmental fund financial statements (16-18) is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. All major governmental funds are discretely
presented on these financial statements, while the non-major funds are combined into a single column,
Combining statements for the non-major funds are reported on page 50 and 51.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the governmental funds reflect a combined fund balance of $2,881,315.
Of this, $454,819 is reserved because it is not available for expenditure or is legally segregated for a specific
future use. The remaining $2,111,159 is classified as “Unreserved”. This balance may serve as a useful
indicator of a government’s net resources available for spending.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City and accounts for many functions of the
government, including public safety, library, parks and recreation, community development and general
administrative services. FY10 general fund revenues totaled $3,533,028. Expenditures, before other
financing sources and uses, totaled $3,714,839. City sales tax revenue came in about 10% below
projections. State sales tax revenues were about 5% less than State estimates, and Auto lieu taxes were
$7,294 over budget. Overall intergovernmental income was as anticipated. Room occupancy tax revenues
of $138,628 were about 8% less than projections; however, revenues picked up as the year progressed and
have remained steady. Franchise fee income was about $48,540 more than the amount budgeted and about
$6,440 less than the prior year. Building permits exceeded budgeted revenues by $7,607, and fines and
forfeitures revenue came in at $21,242 over budget.

The Highway User Revenue Fund is required by state statute to track the state allocation of gasoline taxes
and other state revenues shared with local governments, and required to be used for transportation purposes.
The City also deposits 1% of the City enacted Sales tax (1/3 of the 3% total) to this fund. FY10 Revenues in
this fund totaled $969,744, while expenses totaled $1,079,294. The fund transferred $84,121 to the Grants
Fund to be used for the City’s match on the Ft. Grant Improvement Project and other street projects. HURF
revenues from the State were below projections by $28,678, and expenses exceeded budget by $39,064. The
net expenditures over revenues of $120,382 were offset by use of fund balance. The HURF fund balance at
the close of FY 10 is $129,575. Long term projections show the payoff of fixed cost leases and bond
payments which should make this fund balanced by 2014,

The non-major funds of the City consist of the Grants Special Revenue Fund, the Special Revenue Fund, the
Capital Projects Fund, and the Debt Service Fund that services the long-term debt of the City.

The non-major funds are combined into one column on the governmental fund statements. On July 1, 2008
the City’s Magistrate Court operations were turned over to the Cochise County JP4 Court and as active cases
at the time of the change are resolved, activity in the fund will be reduced.

Proprietary Funds

The proprietary fund financial statements are prepared on the same accounting basis and measurement focus
as the government-wide financial statements, but provide additional detail since each major enterprise fund

is shown directly on the fund statements.



Net assets of the Proprietary Funds were $5,870,453 as of June 30, 2010. Operating revenues totaled
$3,196,917, while operating expenses totaled $2,032,933, resulting in operating income of $1,163,984. This
income is reflective of a surplus in revenue for all of the proprietary funds, Gas, Water, Sewer and Refuse.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual revenues as shown on Page 46 were $82.739 less than budgeted revenues. Revenues included City
Sales Tax revenues of $1,370,798, or $153,622 less than those budgeted. Budgeted miscellaneous revenues
ncluded fund balance appropriations of $615,784 of which $231,043 was used. Expenditures, excluding
transfers, were less than the General Fund appropriations at year-end by $516,712. This difference was due
to conservative spending. There were no budget amendments or supplemental appropriations made during
the year to prevent budget overruns or to increase appropriations for unanticipated expenditures after

adoption of the original budget.
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The capital assets of the City are those assets that are used in performance of City functions including
infrastructure assets. Capital Assets include equipment, buildings, land, park facilities and roads. At the end
of fiscal year 2010, net capital assets of the government activities totaled $10.2 million, and the net capital
assets of the business-type activities totaled $4.7 million. Depreciation on capital assets is recognized in the
Government-Wide financial statements. See note 7 to the financial statements.

Debt

At year-end, the City had $4.1 million in governmental type debt, and $1.7 million in proprietary debt. The
debt is a liability of the government and amounts to $1,195 per capita. During the current fiscal year, the
City’s total debt decreased by $518,726, which consisted of retirements of $591,734, and an increase of
$73,008 for the allowance for accrued compensated absences. See note § to the financial statements for

detailed descriptions.
NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS

For the 2010-2011 fiscal year city budget, the City has projected an increase of 2% in general operating
revenues and operating expenditures from the fiscal year 2009-2010 budgeted amounts. Due to conservative
estimates and anticipation for a warm winter, the budgeted utility fund operating revenues are about 2% less
than actual operations for fiscal year 2009-2010. Gas operating revenues are estimated to increase 2% in
fiscal year 2011 due to anticipated higher costs for the purchase of natural gas to meet customer demands.
There is an emphasis on infrastructure improvements which continues into 2011. In fiscal year 2010-2011
new and/or improved facilities for community programs, library, parks and streets are proposed in the
capital expenditure program for approximately $2.3 million, to be financed by grants and fund
appropriations. Also, $20 million is budgeted for capital improvements for utilities to be financed by grants

and bonds.
CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a

general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Patrick McCourt, City

10



Manager, or Ruth Graham, Finance Director, City of Willcox, 101 South Railroad Avenue, Suite B,
Willcox, AZ 85643. Phone: (520) 384-4271, email: pmccourt @willcoxcity.org or reraham@willcoxeity.org.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,923,333 § 2,484,649 3 4,407,982
Receivables (net of allowance) 404,356 370,464 775,320
Inventory - 110,369 110,369
Internal balances 107,396 (107,396) -
Prepaids 34,060 12,607 46,607
Deferred charges - 31,253 31,253
Temporarily restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 372,293 180,520 552,813
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land and improvements 1,238,102 184,425 1,422,527
Buildings and improvements 3,717,450 - 3,717,450
System and other improvements - 4,345,759 4,345,759
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 968,245 144,154 1,112,399
Infrastructure 4,197,630 - 4,197,630
Construction in progress 126,564 - 126,564
Total Assets 13,089,929 7,756,804 20,846,733
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 252,467 140,522 302,989
Deferred revenue 23,492 - 23,492
Customer deposits - 39,393 39,393
Interest payable 3,947 - 3,947
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 410,528 61,983 472,511
Due in more than one year 3,719,907 1,644,453 5,364,360
Total Liabilities 4,410,341 1,886,351 6,296,692
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 6,117,556 2,967,902 9,085,458
Restricted for:
Debt service 155,392 - 155,392
Streets and other 229,364 - 229,364
Capital projects 66,117 - 66,117
Unrestricted 2,111,159 2,902,551 5,013,710
Total Net Assets 8,679,588 $ 5,870,453 $ 14,550,041

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2010

Highway User Nonmajor Total
Special Governmental Governmental
ASSETS General Revenue Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,923,333 $ - $ - % 1,923,333
Receivables:
Property taxes 9,242 - 19,254 28,496
Other 48,448 - - 48,448
Intergovernmental 173,271 70,919 §3,722 327,912
Due from other funds 146,773 - . 146,773
Prepaid items 29,742 4,318 - 34,060
Restricted cash and investments - 80,030 202,263 372,293
Total Assets $ 2,330,809 3 155,267 $ 395239 § 2,881,315
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 79,408 3 16,237 $ 14,887 % 110,532
Accrued liabilities 132,481 9,455 - 141,936
Due to other funds - - 39,377 39,377
Deferred revenue 7,761 - 15,731 23,492
Total Liabilities 219,650 25,692 69,995 315,337
Fund Balances:
Reserved for;
Roads and highways - 129,575 - 129,575
Debt service - - 159,338 159,338
Other purposes - - 165,906 165,906
Unreserved/Undesignated 2,111,159 - - 2,111,159
Total Fund Balances 2,111,159 129,575 325,244 2,565,978
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,330,800 $ 155,267 $ 355,239 % 2,881,315

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets
Jure 30, 2010

Total governmental fund balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds,

Governmental capital assets $ 14,119,042
Accumulated Depreciation (3,871,051)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Bonds payable $ (3,830,000
Capital leases (185,508)
Compensated absences (114,926)
Accrued interest (3,947)

Total net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses, permits and fees
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Interest

Other revenues

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES

Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Culture and Recreation
Streets and Highways
Public Works

Capital Outiay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out
Transfers in
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Highway User Nonmajor Total
Special Governmental Governmental

General Revenue Funds Funds
$ 1,897,850 $ 685398 $ 150,458 $ 2,733,706
71,030 - 71,030
961,859 283,181 426,476 1,671,516
17,868 - - 17,868
28,592 - - 28,592
8,774 1,165 928 10,867
81,755 - 36,274 118,029
3,067,728 969,744 614,136 4,651,608
660,200 - 52,113 712,313
1,771,686 - - 1,771,686
833,051 - - 833,051
- 622,279 - 622,279
449,902 - - 449,902
- 25,789 682,485 708,274
- 300,000 104,000 404,000
- 131,626 54,624 186,250
3,714,839 1,079,694 893,222 5,687,755
(647,111) (109,950} (279,086) (1,036,147)
(49,232) (84,121) - (133,353)
465,300 - 138,503 603,803
416,068 (84,121) 138,503 470,450
(231,043) (194,071) (140,583) (563,697)
2,342.202 323,646 465,827 3,131,675
$ 2,111,159 $ 129,575 $ 3257244 $ 2,565,978

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Furd Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For Year Ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.
Capital Outlay $ 795,551
Depreciation Expense (513,148)

The repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds and is recorded as an expenditure, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Compensated absences expenses reported in the statement of activities

do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA

Assets

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 20610
Gas Water Sewer Refuse
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Current Assets:
Cagh % 861,340 3 1,072,327 3 533,418 17,564 3 2,484,649
Receivables (net of allowance) 57,374 73,407 65,251 48,488 244,520
Prepaids 6,383 3,589 2,635 - 12,607
Due from other governments - 125,944 - - 125,944
Deferred charges - - 31,253 - 31,253
Inventory 59,364 40,502 10,503 - 110,369
Restricted cash 32,608 36,381 107,789 3,652 180,520
Total Current Assets 1,017,159 1,352,150 750,849 69,704 3,189,862
Noncurrent Assets:
Land and improvements 28,030 131,900 24,495 - 184,425
Buildings and improvements 16,000 - 5,800 . 21,800
System and other improvements 1,254,182 4,817,698 3,975,064 - 10,046,944
Machinery and equipment 128,094 108,613 119,389 - 356,096
Vehicles 85,582 80,303 26,899 . 192,784
Accumulated depreciation (917,078) (2,618,813) (2,591,820) - (6,127,711)
Total Noncurrent Assets 594,810 2,519,701 1,559,827 - 4,674,338
Total Assets 1,611,969 3,871,851 2,310,676 69,704 7,864,200
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounis payable 25,542 3.810 15,346 39,858 89,556
Accrued liabilities 17,071 15,208 15,036 3,651 50,966
Customer deposits 32,698 6,695 - - 39,393
Due to other funds - - - 107,396 107,396
Current portion of long-term debt - 22,000 39,983 - 61,983
Total Current Liabilities 75,311 52,713 70,365 150,905 349,204
Long-Term Debt (net of current portion):
Revenue bonds payable - 884,000 760,453 - 1,644,453
Total Long-Term Debt - 884,000 760,453 - I,644,453
Total Liabilities 75,311 936,713 830,818 150,905 1,993,747
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 594,810 1,613,701 759,391 - 2,967,902
Restricted - - - - -
Unrestricted (deficit) 041,848 1,321,437 720,467 (81,201) 2,902,551
Total Net Assets (deficit) $ 1,536,638 $ 2,935,138 § 1,479,858 81,201y & 5,870,453

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating Revenues:

Charges for services 3

Other revenues

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Salaries, wages and benefits
Office expenses and travel
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities

Contract services
Miscellancous

Gas purchases

Service, supplies and other
Depreciation/amortization

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest income
Interest expense and fiscal charges
Connection and impact fees

Total Non-Operating
Revenue (Expense)

Net Income before
contributions and transfers

Transfers out

Net Income

Total net assels {deficit), beginning of year

Total net assets (deficit), end of year %

Gas Water Sewer Refuse
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
938,159 725,295 ¥ 693,352 § 567,300 $ 2924112
55,825 131,980 83,000 - 272,805
993,984 857,275 778,352 567,306 3,196,917
97,228 177,822 136,757 - 411,807
3,167 887 - - 4,054
1,915 1,556 12,338 - 15,809
1,768 45,746 - - 47,514
- 1,676 - 470,102 471,778
125 1,087 - 4,983 6,195
491,801 - N 491,801
71,395 49264 229,065 - 349,724
30,994 110,605 92,652 - 234,251
698,393 388,643 470,812 475,085 2,032,933
205,591 468,632 307,540 92,221 1,163,984
3,493 4,270 1,794 - 9,557
- (38,239) (33,616) - (71,855)
9,590 9,602 - - 19,192
13,083 (24,367) (31,822) - (43,106)
308,674 444,265 275,718 92,221 1,120,878
(145,200} (186,650) (85,800) (52,800 {470,430)
163,474 257,615 189,918 39,421 650,428
1,373,184 2,677,523 1,289,940 (120.,622) 5,220,025
1,536,658 $ 2,935,138 $ 1479858 % (81,201) § 5,870,453

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers, service fees
Cash received from customers, other
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Proceeds/Payments from/(to) other funds
Transfers out

Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Purchase of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid

Connection & impact fees

Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash flows from investing activities

Net change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Flows

from Operating Activities:
Net Operating Income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation/amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)}/Decrease in receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in prepaids/inventory
Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payable
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued liabilities
Net cash flows from operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Gas Water Sewer Refuse
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 962,685 § 744,662 $ 702,052 § 573,833 $2,983,232
55,825 131,980 85,000 - 272,805
(592,042) (136,256)  (259,380) (503,372) (1,491,050}
(88,719 (174,993)  (135,482) - (399,194)
337,749 565,393 392,190 70,461 1,365,793
- (125,944) - - (125,944)
(145,200) (186,650) (85,800 (52,800 (470,450)
(145,200) (312,594) (85,800) (52,800 (596,394)
(202,565) (185,092) (56,836) - {444,493)
- (21,000 (38,455) - (59,455)
- (38,239 (33,616) - (71,855)
9,590 9,602 - - 19,192
(192,975) (234,729 (128,907) - (556,611)
3,493 4,270 1,794 - 9,557
3,493 4,270 1,794 - 9,557
3,067 22,340 179,277 17,661 222,345
890,971 1,086,368 461,930 3,555 2,442,824
$ 894,038 $1,108,708 $641,207 $ 21,216 $ 2,665,169
$ 295561 % 468,632 $307.540 § 92,221 51,163,984
30,994 110,605 92,652 - 234,251
24,526 19,367 8,700 6,527 59,120
(23,939 (27,688) (13,138) - (64,765
2,068 (8,352) {4,839) (28,355) (39,478)
8,509 2,829 1,275 68 12,681
$ 337,749 % 565393 $392,190 § 70461  $ 1,365,793
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Court Agency Fund and Pension Trust Fund

June 36, 2010
Magistrate Volunteer
Court Firefighters'
Agency Relief and
Fund Pension
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 4,025 $ 215403
Accounts receivable - -
Total Assets and Other Debits 4,025 215,403
LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities 4,025 -
Total liabilities 4,025 -
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits
and other purposes b - $ 215403

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Volunteer
Firefighters'
Relief and
Pension
ADDITIONS:

Contributions:

Employer $ 1,271
State fire tax 2,875
Plan member 1,271

Total Contributions 5,417

Investment Income:

Interest earnings 363

Net Investment Income (Loss) 363

Total Additions 5,780
DEDUCTIONS:

Benefits 2,786
Total Deductions 2,786
Net Increase (Decrease) 2,994
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

Beginning of Year 212,409

End of Year $ 215403

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. Sammary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements include all activities of the City of Willcox, Arizona (the
City). The financial statements of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The more significant of the City’s accounting
policies are described below,

Reporting entity

The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected seven member council which
appoints the mayor and vice-mayor. As required by generaily accepted accounting principles,
these financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the
government is considered to be financially accountable. Biended component units, although
legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from
these units are combined with data of the primary government. The financial statements include
all funds and account groups that account for activities over which the City’s elected mayor and
council exercise primary financial management and oversight responsibility. The following is a
brief review of the component unit included in defining the City’s reporting entity. There are no
discretely presented component units and one blended component unit.

Blended Component Unit included within the reporting entity:

The Willcox Municipal Property Corporation (MPC), which is a nonprofit corporation
incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona, was formed for the sole purpose of assisting
the City in obtaining financing for various projects for the City. The MPC has been included
(blended) as part of the reporting entity within the Highway User Special Revenue fund in this
financial report. All related receivables and payables between the City and the MPC have been
eliminated. Separate financial statements for this blended component unit are not prepared and

thus, are not available.
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government. For the most part, the effect of the inter-fund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general

revenues.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financiat Statements
June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from government-wide financial statements.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The uses of financial resources to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the
government-wide financial statements, rather than as expenditures. Proceeds from long-term debt
are recorded as a lability in the government-wide financial statements, rather than as an

other financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term debt of the City are reported as a
reduction of a related liability, rather than as expenditures in the government-wide financial

statements.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when
a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well
as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only

when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, state shared revenues, licenses and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due
within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is

received by the City.
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for

in another fund.

The Highway User Revenue Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the City’s
share of motor fuel tax revenues and lottery proceeds which are set aside for the
maintaining, repairing, and upgrading of streets.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Gas Fund accounts for the provision of natural gas to the residents of the City.
The Water Fund accounts for the provision of water services to the residents of the City.
The Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of sewer services to the residents of the City.

The Refuse Fund accounts for the provision of waste disposal services to the residents of
the City.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Magistrate Court Agency Fund accounts for assets held in a custodial or trustee
capacity for the court.

The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the Public Safety Employees
Retirement System, which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to
qualified public safety employees.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as

general revenues rather than as program revenues, Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and

services.

Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash-on-hand, demand deposits and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition for purposes of this note and the statement of cash flows.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to” or “due from other funds.” All trade accounts
receivable in the enterprise funds are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Due
to the pature of the accounts receivable in governmental type activities, management does not
consider an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable necessary or material. Therefore, no
allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is presented.

Taxes

Property tax revenues are recognized as revenues in the year collected or if collected within 60
days thereafter unless they are prepaid.

The County levies real property taxes on or before the third Monday in August, which become
due and payable in two equal installments. The first installment is due on the first day of October
and becomes delinquent after the first business day of November. The second installment is due
on the first day of March of the next year and becomes delinquent after the first business day of
May. The County also levies various personal property taxes during the year, which are due the
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

second Monday of the month following receipt of the tax notice and become delinquent 30 days
thereafter. A lien against real and personal property assessed attaches on the first day of January
preceding the assessment and levy thereof.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased
rather than when consumed. Inventories of the business type activities consist principally of
materials used in the repair of the distribution, collection and treatment systems.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements,

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activity columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the City as assets with an individual cost of more than $1,500 and an estimated useful life in
excess of three years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at
the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of
the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the assets

as follows:
Buildings and improvements 15-30 years
Vehicles 5-7 years
Furniture and Equipment 3-10 years
Water, sewer and gas systems 2(-33 years
Infrastructure — Streets 20-30 years

Compensated Absences

For govermmental funds, amounts of vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave that are not
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as liabilities
in the government-wide statement of net assets and as expenses in the government-wide
statement of activities. No expenditures are reported for these amounts in the fund financial
statements. Vested or accumulated vacation leave in the proprietary funds are recorded as an
expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to employees and are thus recorded in
both the government-wide financial statements and the individual fund financial statements.
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NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net assets. Bond premiums, discounts, and issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life
of the applicable debt. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
prermiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt

proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Estimates

Generally accepted accounting principles require management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect assets and liabilities, contingent assets and liabilities, and revenues and expenditures.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed by the City throughout the year; however, all encumbrances and/or

appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

NOTE 2, Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total governmental fund
balances and net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of
nets assets. This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of
net assets versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets. The

details of these differences are reported in the reconciliation.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net
assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities, These
differences are the result of converting from the current resources measurement focus and modified
accrual basis for governmental fund statements to the economic resources measurement focus and full
accrual basis used for government-wide statements. The details of these differences are reported in

the reconciliation.
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NOTE 3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP for all governmental funds.
Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council to June 30, 2010.
There were no amendments made to the original appropriations during the current fiscal year.

Budgetary Process: State law requires that on or before the third Monday in July of each fiscal
year, the City council must adopt a tentative budget. Once this tentative budget has been adopted,
the expenditures may not be increased upon final adoption, however, they may be decreased.
Actually, with the adoption of the tentative budget, the council has set its maximum “Hmits” for
expenditure, but these limits may be reduced upon final adoption.

The expenditure limitation for the City is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. To
ensure compliance with the State imposed expenditure limitation, a separate uniform expenditure
report must be filed with the State each year. Expenditures may not legally exceed the
expenditure limitation of all fund types as a whole. The City complied with this law during the

current fiscal year.

For management purposes, the City adopts a budget by function and activity for each individual
fund. The adopted budget can be amended as long as the total budgeted expenditures of all funds
does not increase. The level of budgetary control (that is, the Jevel at which expenditures cannot
legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established at the department level in the General
Fund and at the individual fund level for the Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects

funds.

The City Manager, subject to City Council approval, may at any time transfer any unencumbered
appropriation balance or portion thereof between a department or activity. The adopted budget
cannot be amended in any way without Council approval.

Final Budget Adoption: State law specifies that exactly seven days prior to the day the property
tax levy is adopted, the City council must adopt the final budget for the fiscal year. The date in
State law for adoption of the tax levy is on or before the third Monday in August. The adopted
budget then becomes the amount proposed for expenditure in the upcoming fiscal year. The
adoption of the final budget may take place through a simple motion approved by the council.

Expenditures over Appropriations

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level. The
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual reports
as listed in the table of contents present all of the departments which incurred an excess of
expenditures/expenses over appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2010, if any.
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NOTE 3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued)

Deficit Fund Equity

The Refuse Fund had a deficit in fund balance of $81,201 as of June 30, 2010 which decreased
from the $120,622 June 30, 2009 deficit.

NOTE 4. Deposits and Investments

A reconciliation to the government-wide statement of net assets as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,407,982
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 552,813
Trust and agency fund cash 219,428
Total cash and equivalents $ 5,180,223
Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk

For deposits this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposit may not
be returned to it. The City does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30,
2010, cash on hand was $1,794 and the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $4,159,251.
As of June 30, 2010, $0 of the City’s bank balance of $4,213,102 was exposed to custodial credit
risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments

Investment Fund

The Arizona State Treasurer’s Office operates the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).
The LGIP is available for investment of funds administered by any Arizona Public Treasurer.
The LGIP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. Deposits in the LGIP are
not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Arizona, and participants share proportionally

in any realized gain or losses on investments.,
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NOTE 4. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The provisions of State Jaw (A.R.S. 35-323) govern the investment of funds in excess of
$100,000. A.R.S. 35-323 allows for investment in certificates of deposit, interest bearing savings
accounts, repurchase agreements with a maximum maturity of 180 days, pooled investment funds
established by the State Treasurer, obligations guaranteed by the United States, bonds of the State
of Arizona or other local municipalities, commercial paper of prime quality that is rated “P1” by
Moody’s investors or “Al" by Standard and Poor’s rating service, and bonds, debentures or notes
that are issued by corporations organized and doing business in the United States subject to
certain restrictions. For investments of less than $100,000, procedures as specified by local
ordinance or resolution must be followed.

As of June 30, 2010 the government had the following investments and maturities:

Weighted
Fair Quality Average
Value Rating (1) Maturity (2)
Cash on hand and on deposit:
Cash on deposit $ 622,683 N/A N/A
Local Government Pooled
Investment Fund (L.GIP) 1,019,187 N/A N/A
Certificates of deposit 1,003,802 N/A N/A
Money market funds 2,534,551 N/A N/A
Total cash and investments $5,180,223

(1) Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate associated credit risk. N/A
indicates not applicable.

(2) Interest rate risk is estimated using the weighted average days to maturity,
when applicable

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing
interest rates is to comply with the provisions of State law {A.R.S. 35- 323) which requires that
the City’s investment portfolio maturities do not exceed five years from the time of purchase.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City’s policy for reducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with State law
(A.R.S, 35-323) which limits investment in commercial paper and corporate bonds to the top
ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations such as Standard & Poor’s
and Moody’s Investor Services.
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NOTE 5, Restricted Assets

Restricted assets at June 30, 2010 consisted of the following cash reserves:

Restricted Cash

Streets and Other 80,030
Nonmajor Funds 292,263
Gas Fund - Customer Deposits 32,698
Water Fund - Debt Reserves and Customer Deposits 36,381
Sewer Fund - Debt Reserves and Customer Deposits 107,789
Refuse Fund - Customer Deposits 3,652
Subtotal 552,813
Magistrate Court Agency Fund 4,025
Volunteer Firefighters Relief and Pension Fund 215,402
Total Restricted Cash $ 772,240
NOTE 6. Property Taxes Receivable

Property taxes receivable in the amount of $9,242 consist of collected and undistributed taxes and
uncollected property taxes as determined from the records of the County Treasurer’s office.
Deferred revenue of $7,761 represents that portion of the property taxes receivable that have not
been collected within 60 days after year end. Consequently, this amount has not been included in
CUITent year revenues.
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NOTE 7. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Balance Balance
Governmental Activities: 6/30/2009 Additions Deletions 6/30/2010
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,214,006 $ 24,096 $ - $ 1,238,102
Construction in progress 96,432 629,104 (598,972) 126,564
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,310,438 653,200 (598,972) 1,364,666
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 4,854,154 635,764 {110,000) 5,379,918
Infrastructure 4,743,562 87,531 - 4,831,003
Furniture, Equipment, Vehicles 2,533,688 18,027 (8,350) 2,543,365
Total capital assets being depreciated 12,131,404 741,322 {118,350) 12,754,376
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements (1,632,001) {140,467) 116,000 (1,662,468)
Infrastructure (449,761) (183.702) - (633,463)
Furniture, Equipment, Vehicles (1,394,491) (188,979 8,350 (1,575,120)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,476,253) (513,148) 118,350 (3,871,051)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 8,655,151 228,174 - 8,883,325
Governmental activities capital assets, net 3 9,965,589 $ 881,374 $ (598,972)  § 10,247,991

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions programs of the City as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation
Public works

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities
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NOTE 7. Capital Assets (Continned)

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Balance Balance
Business Type Activities: 6/36/2009 Additions Deletions 6/30/2010
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 184,425 3 - $ - $ 184,425
Construction in progress 1,618,891 104,961 (1,723,852) -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,803,316 104,961 (1,723,852) 184,425
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 21,800 - - 21,800
System and Other Improvements 8,007,457 2,039,487 - 10,046,944
Furniture, Equipment, Vehicles 526,061 22,819 - 548,880
Total capital assets being depreciated 8,555,318 2,062,306 - 10,617,624
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements (21,800) - - (21,800)
System and Other Improvements (5,502,839 (198,346) - (5,701,185)
Furniture, Equipment, Vehicles (371,983 (30,875) (1,868) (404,726)
Total accumulated depreciation (5,896,622) (229,221 (1,868) (6,127,711}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,658,696 1,833,085 (1,868) 4,489,913
Business type activities capital assets, net $ 4,462,012 $ 1,938,046 $ (1,725,720 $ 4,674,338

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the City as follows:

Business-Type Activities:

Gas b 30,994
Water 110,605
Sewer 87,622

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 229221
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NOTE 8. Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Balance Balance Current
Governmental activities: 6/30/2009 Additions Retirements 6/30/2610 Portion
General Obligation:
Capital Leases $ 238703 % - % (53255 % 185508 § 56,528
Water Improvement Bonds,
Project of 1974 24,000 - (4,000) 20,000 4,000
Total General Obligation 262,763 - (57,255) 205,508 60,528
Revenize Obligation:
Municipal Property Corporation Excise
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 2,825,000 - {185,000 2,640,000 195,000
Highway User Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2003 115,000 - (115,600 - -
GADA Revenue Bonds,
Series 2003A 965,000 - (90,000 875,000 95,000
Series 2007 305,000 - (10,000) 295,000 10,000
Total Revenue Obligation 4,210,000 - (400,000) 3,810,000 300,060
Accrued Compensated Absences 115,910 56,783 (57,766) 114,927 50,000
Total Governmental Activity
Long-term Liabilitics $ 4,588,673 3 56,783  $ (515021) § 4,130435 $ 410,528
Business-type Activities:
Revenue Obligation:
Water Revenue Bonds, USDA/RD
Series 2005 $ 927000 & - (21,0000 $ 906,000 § 22,000
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Rural
Uttilities 2001 A 508,196 - (22,369) 485,827 23,375
Rural Utilities Bonds 2001 B 330,695 - (16,086) 314,609 16,608
Total Revenue Obligation 1,765,801 - (59,453) 1,706,436 61,983
Accrued Compensated Absences 19,763 16,225 (17,258) 18,730 18,730
Total Business-type Activity
Long-term Liabilities $ 1,785,654 & 16,225  §  (76,713) % 1,725,166 % 80,713
Total Long-term Debt $ 6374327 § 73,008 $ (591,734) § 5,855,601 $ 491,241
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NOTE 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2010:

General Obligation:

5% Water Improvement Bonds, Project of 1974, payable in semi-annual installments of

principal and interest through 2014,
Revenue Obligation - Governmental:

Municipal Property Corporation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006, due in
semiannual principal and interest installments, bearing interest at 3.85% to 4.625%,

maturing in July 1, 2021

Greater Arizona Development Authority Infrastructure Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 A,
due in semiannual principal and interest installments, bearing interest at 4.0% to

4.375%, maturing in August 1, 2017

Greater Arizona Development Authority Infrastructure Revenue Bonds, Series 2007
due in semiannual principal and interest installments, bearing interest at 4.0% to 5.0%,

maturing in August 1, 2027
Revenue Obligation - Business-type:

United States Department of Agriculture 4.125% Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2005,
payable in semi-annual instaliments of principal and interest, maturing July 1, 2035.

United States Department of Agriculture 4.5% Sewer Revenue Bonds, Rural Utilities
2001 A Bonds, payable in semi-annual installments of principal and interest, maturing
July 1, 2025.

United States Department of Agriculture 3.25% Rural Utilities 2001 A Bonds, payable
in semi-annual installments of principal and interest, maturing July 1, 2025.

Total Bonds Payable
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NOTE 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Debt service requirements for bonds payable are as follows:

Fiscal Period Govermmental Activities Business-type Activities
Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 304,000 $ 166,384 $ 61,983 $ 69,459
2012 310,000 154,184 63,575 66,962
2013 330,000 141,284 66,231 64,397
2014 351,000 126,784 68,955 61,723
2015 350,000 111,805 71,750 58,938
2016-2020 1,730,000 320,213 405,342 248,769
2021-2025 350,000 40,188 494,600 159,660
2026-2030 65,000 4,735 213,000 80,890
2031-2035 - - 261,000 33,206
Total $ 3,820,000 $ 1,065,577 $ 1,706,436 $ 844,004

The City has entered into four lease agreements which are considered capital leases in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standard Board statement number 13. The following is an annual
scheduie of future minimum lease payments with the present vatue of the net minimum lease
payments for the fiscal years ending June 30:

Fiscal Period

Ending Governmental

June 30 Leases
2011 $ 66,902
2012 62,336
2013 45,982
2014 34,089
2015 -

Total remaining lease payments 209,309

Less amount representing interest (23,801)

Present value of net remaining
minimum lease payments $ 185,508

39



CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

NOTE 9. Interfund Transactions and Balances

The composition of interfund receivables and payables balances as of June 30, 2010 follows:

Interfund Interfund

Fund Receivables Payables
General Fund $ 146,773 3 -
Grants Special Revenue Fund - 39,377
Refuse Fund - 107,396
Total $ 146,773 $ 146,773

Interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. Residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are netted and reported in the
government-wide financial statement as Internal balances.

As of June 30, 2010 interfund transfers are as follows:

Transfers In:

General Non major
Transfers Out: Fund Funds Total

General Fund $ - $ 49,232 $ 49,232
(3as Fund 145,200 - 145,200
Water Fund 181,500 5,150 186,650
Sewer Fund 85,800 - 85,800
Refuse Fund 52,800 - 52,800
Highway User Fund - 84,121 84,121

Total transfers out 3 465,300 $ 138,503 $ 603,803

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget required to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to
debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service
payments become due, (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance
various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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NOTE 10. Equity Classifications

Equity is classified in the government-wide financial statements as net assets and is displayed in
three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net assets — consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either
by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling

legislation.

c. Unrestricted net assets —~ All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.

In the fund financial statements governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund
balance is further classified as reserved and unreserved. Proprietary fund equity is classified the
same as in the government-wide statements.

Reservations and designations are used to indicate that a portion of the fund balance is not
available for appropriation or expenditure, or is legally segregated for a specific future use.

NOTE 11. Retirement and Pension Plans

Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS)

Plan Description — The City contributes to a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan; a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit health care plan; and a cost-
sharing, muitiple-employer defined benefit long-term disability plan, all of which are
administered by the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS). The plan covers employees of the
State of Arizona and participating political subdivisions and school districts. The ASRS (through
its Retirement Fund) provides retirement (i.e., pension), death, and survivor benefits; the Health
Benefit Supplement Fund provides health insurance premium benefits (i.e., a monthly subsidy);
and the Long-Term Disability Fund provides long-term disability benefits. Benefits are
established by state statute. The ASRS is governed by the Arizona State Retirement System
Board according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2.

The ASRS issues a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. The most recent report may be obtained by writing the
ASRS, 3300 North Central Avenue, P.O. Box 33910, Phoenix, AZ 85067-3910 or by calling

(602) 240-2000 or (800) 621-3778.

41



CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

NOTE 11. Retirement and Pension Plans (Continued)

Funding Policy - The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan
members’ and the City’s contribution rates. For the current fiscal year, active ASRS members
were required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 9.45 percent (8.95
percent for retirement, and 0.5 percent for long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered
payroll and the City was required to contribute 9.45 percent (7.99 percent for retirement, 0.96
percent for health insurance premium, and 0.5 percent for long-term disability) of the members’

annual covered payroll.

The City’s contributions for the current and two previous fiscal years were equal to the required
contributions and were as follows:

Year Ended Retirement Health Benefit Long-Term
June 30, Fund Supplement Fund  Disability Fund
2008 $ 147,656 $ 20,535 3 9,779
2009 134,721 17,572 8,368
2010 131,098 17,100 8,143

Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS)

Plan Description - The City contributes to the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System
(PSPRS), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan and an agent multiple-
employer defined benefit health insurance premium plan that covers public safety personnel who
are regularly assigned hazardous duty in the employ of the State of Arizona or a political
subdivision thereof. The PSPRS, acting as a common investment administrative agent, is
governed by a five-member board, known as the Fund Manager, and the participating local
boards according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4. The PSPRS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for PSPRS. That report may be obtained by writing to Public Safety Personnel, 3010
E. Camelback Road, Suite 200, Phoenix, AZ 85016 or by calling (602) 255-5575.

Funding Policy - For the current fiscal year, active PSPRS member employees were required by
statute to contribute 7.65 percent of their annual covered salary to the PSPRS and the City was
required to contribute 19.81 percent, the remaining amounts necessary to fund the PSPRS, as
determined by the actuarial basis specified by statute. The health insurance premium portion of
the contribution rate was actuarially set at 0.78 percent of covered payroll

Actnarial Metheds and Assumptions — The significant actuarial methods and assumptions used
for the PSPRS plan and related benefits {unless noted), and the actuarial assumptions used to
establish the contribution requirements are as follows:
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

NOTE 11. Retirement and Pension Plans (Continued)

The PSPRS contribution requirements for the year ended June 30, 2010 were established by the
June 30, 2009 actuarial valuations using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial
assumptions included (a) 8.50 percent investment rate of return and (b) projected salary increases
ranging from 5.50 to 8.50 percent per year. The assumptions did not include cost-of-living
adjustments. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the
effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a seven year period. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll
on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2010, was 27 years for
unfunded actuarial accrued liability and 20 years for excess.

The preceding methods comply with the financial reporting standards established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value
of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the future. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plans and the annual required contributions are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates
are made. The required schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary
information on page 44 provides muitiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial
value of the plans’ assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued

liability for benefits.

Annual Pension/OPEB Cost ~ During the year ended June 30, 2009, the City’s annual pension
cost of $123,230 and the annual OPEB cost of $9,690 was equal to the City’s required and actual

contributions.
Annual Percentage of Net Pension/
Year Ended Pension/ Annual Cost OPEB
Plan June 30, OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
Pension 2008 $ 93,498 100% $ -
2009 123,230 100% -
2010 * * *
Health Insurance 2008 $ 6,603 100% § -
2009 9,690 100% -
2010 * * *

* Information for fiscal year 2010 is not yet available.

Additional historical trend information for the City’s PSPRS is disclosed on page 44.
Historical trend information is presented in order for a reader Lo assess the progress made in
accumulating sufficient assets to pay pension benefits as they become payable.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

NOTE 11, Retirement and Pension Plans (Continued)

Firefighters’ Relief and Pension Fund

The Firefighters’ Relief and Pension Fund is a defined contribution pension plan administered by
the City and a board of trustees for the City’s volunteer firefighters. There are twenty current
members of the plan. Financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.
Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal
commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.

A defined contribution pension plan provides pension benefits in return for services rendered,
provides an individual account for each participant, and specifies how contributions to the
individual’s account are to be determined instead of specifying the amount of benefits the
individual is to receive. According to state statute, a volunteer firefighter who has served for 25
years or more or has reached 60 years of age and has served 20 years or more shall be eligible to
receive a monthly retirement not to exceed $150 per month, as determined by the board of
trustees. Such pension, if paid, may be increased or decreased in amount, or discontinued at the
discretion of the board of trustees. Pension and relief benefits may only be paid from the income
of the trust fund. However, a firefighter who leaves the service without being eligible for
retirement benefits is entitled to all previous deductions from his salary plus interest at a rate
determined by the board of trustees. As established by state statute, in lieu of another acceptable
pension plan, all volunteer firefighters must participate in the pension plan from the date they

enter service,

Under the plan provisions, the volunteer firefighters voluntarily make contributions to the plan
which is equally matched by the City. In addition, the State of Arizona is required by statute to
contribute a portion of the annual tax received on fire insurance premiums. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010, the City’s contributions amounted to $1,271, and the firefighters’
contributions amounted to $1,271; and the State’s contributions totaled $2,875.

No pension provision changes occurred during the year that affected the required contributions to
be made by the City or its volunteer firefighters. The Firefighters’ Relief and Pension Fund held
no securities of the City or other related parties during the fiscal years or as of the close of the

fiscal year.



CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

NOTE 12. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss to torts; theft of, and damage to and destruction of
agsets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The City’s insurance protection is provided by
the Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool, of which the City is a participating member. The
limit for basic coverage is for $2,000,000 per occurrence on claims made basis. The agreement
provides that AMRRP will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure
through commercial companies for claims in excess of $600,000 for general liability claims and
$100,000 for property claims for each insured event, The Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool
is structured such that members’ premiums are based on an actuarial review that will provide
adequate reserves to aliow the pool to meet its expected financial obligations. The pool has
authority to assess its members’ additional premiuims should reserves and annual premiums be

insufficient to meet the pool’s obligations.

The City is insured by AMRRP for workers compensation insurance for potential job-related
accidents. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and
the amount of settlements did not exceed insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal

years.

NOTE 13. Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

The City contracts with Cochise County for landfill services at the County landfill site. The
City’s landfill site was closed in 1993 in accordance with required procedures. The City
continues to monitor the site and performs annual ingpections at a minimal cost; thus, there are no
liabilities for landfill closure and postclosure care costs reported in the financial statements.

NOTE 14. Contingencies

The City is involved with various matters of litigation from year to year. It is the opinion of City
officials that these cases will either be handled by the City’s insurance coverage or that they will
not have a material affect on the City’s financial condition.

NOTE 15, Subsequent Events

Early in fiscal year 2011 the city borrowed $1,000,000 from the Water Infrastructure Authority of
Arizona (WIFA) for wastewater system improvements. The note bears interest at 3%. The entire
principal balance of $1,000,000 is scheduled to be repaid on July 1, 2013.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Schedule of Funding Progress

June 30, 2010

Public Safety Personnel Retirement System - Police

An analysis of the progress of the Public Plan (PSPRS) from June 30, 2003 through June 30,
2010, based on actuarial valuations follows:

(a) (b) (a)/(b) {(b)-(a) [e] [(b)-(a)/(c)]
Entry Age Unfunded AAL
Valunation Actuarial Actuarial Annual As a Percentage
Date Value of Accrued Percent Unfunded Covered of Covered
June 30, Assets Liability (AAL) Funded AAL Payroll Payroll
2003 1,453,650 1,841,033 78.96% 387,383 383,352 101.1%
2004 1,436,213 2,020,638 71.08% 584,425 404,724 144.4%
2005 1,414,826 2,295,922 61.62% 881,096 401,879 219.2%
2006 1,415,567 2,226,313 63.58% 810,746 459,137 176.6%
2007 1,373,221 2,433,358 56.43% 1,060,137 482,350 219.8%
2008 1,568,725 2,505,824 62.60% 937,099 545,678 171.7%
2009 * 1,755,045 2,779,782 63.14% 1,024,737 547,566 187.1%
2010 * e ke Ak e EES o
Post-retirement health insurance subsidy measurements under GASB Statement No. 45
(@) (b) (b}-(a) {a)/(b) () {(b)-(a)/(c)]
Unfunded AAL
Valuation Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Annual As a Percentage
Date Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
June 30, Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
2006 - 27,564 27,564 0.0% 459,137 6.0%
2007 - 44,436 44,436 0.0% 482,350 9.2%
2008 - 48,594 48,594 0.0% 545,678 8.9%
2009 # - 67,596 67,596 0.0% 547,566 12.3%
2010 * Aok F ok 3k #% * % A

*  For fiscal years prior to 2009 (which were prior to the implementation of GASB Statement Nos.
43 and 45), the pension and health insurance benefit amounts were aggregated. In fiscal year 2009,
GASB Statements Nos. 43 and 45 measurements are made and reported; thus, these benefits are

disaggregated and reported separately,

*¥ Information for fiscal year 2010 is not yet available.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARFEZONA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

FOR THE FOLLOWING MAJOR FUNDS:

General Fund - Detail Budget and Actual

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government which
are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds — Detail Budget and Actual

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditures for a particular purpose.

* Highway User Revenue Fund (Streets) - This fund is used to account for the City’s share of
motor fuel tax revenues and lottery proceeds which are set aside for the maintaining,

repairing, and upgrading of streets.

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP for all governmental funds,
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
For Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES:

Taxes:
Property tax
City sales tax
Room occupancy tax
Franchise taxes
Total Taxes

Licenses, Pertnits and Fees:
Liguor licenses
Business licenses
Cemetery fees
Building permits

Total Licenses, Permits and Fees

Intergovernmental:
State revenue sharing
Auto lieu taxes
Stale sales taxes
Total Intergovernmental

Charges for Services:
Community center rent
Stout Cider Mill rent
Swimming pool fees
Total Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeifures:
Fines & forfeitures
Total Fines and Forfeitures

Interest

Other Revenues:
Miscellaneous
Total Other Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 66,080 $ 66,080 $ 64,684 b (1,396)
1,524,420 1,524,420 1,370,798 (153,622)
150,000 150,000 138,628 {11,372}
275,200 275,200 323,740 48,540
2,015,700 2,015,700 1,897,850 (117,850)
1,700 1,700 2,221 521
3,000 5,000 5,378 378
20,000 20,000 25,824 5,824
30,000 30,000 37,607 7,607
56,700 56,700 71,030 14,330
501,654 301,654 502,463 809
167,000 167,000 174,294 7,294
298,631 298,681 285,102 (13,579)
967,335 967,335 961,859 (5,476)
3,500 3,500 2,850 (650)
2,000 2,000 - (2,000)
13,000 13,000 15,018 2,018
18,500 18,500 17,868 {632}
7,350 7.350 28,592 21,242
7,350 7,350 28,592 21,242
30,000 30,000 8,774 (21,226)
54,882 54,882 81,755 26,873
54,882 54,882 81,755 26,873
3,150,467 3,150,467 3,067,728 (82,739)
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
For Year Ended June 30, 2010 (Continued)

EXPENDITURES

General Government:
Mayor & Council
General & Administrative
Finance
Total General Government

Public Safety:
Public Safety Administration
Communications
Police
Magistrate
Fire
Animal Control
Building Inspection
Total Public Safety

Cultore and Recreation:
Library
Parks & Recreation
Swimming Pool
Community Programs
Total Culture and Recreation

Public Works
Public Works Administration
Cemetery
Central Garage
Buildings & Grounds
Total Public Works

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Excess of Revenues Over (Under} Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from Gas fund
Transfer from Water fund
Transfer from Sewer fund
Transfer from Refuse fund
Transfer to capital project and grant funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Budgeted Amounts Variance

Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 25918 $ 25216 $ 24,690 $ 526
571,901 372,879 349,908 22,971
308,339 296,839 285,602 11,237
906,158 694,934 660,200 34,734
308,121 308,121 287,222 20,899
295,591 273,044 245,691 27,353
774,638 750,638 706,897 43,741
- 193,125 192,585 540
150,720 150,720 104,524 46,196
89,408 89,408 89,008 400
179,083 174,383 145,759 28,624
1,797,561 1,939,439 1,771,686 167,753
306,099 304,099 245,633 58,466
418,736 409,236 364,220 45,016
154,270 150,270 117,160 33,110
162,250 153,256 106,038 49,218
1,041,355 1,018,861 833,051 185,810
216,310 194,650 170,700 23,950
70,532 68,532 42,225 26,307
101,800 104,223 99,873 4,350
224,412 210,912 137,104 73,808
613,054 578,317 449,902 128,415
4,358,128 4,231,551 3,714,839 516,712
(1,207,661) (1,081,084) (647,111) 433,973
145,200 145,200 145,200 -
181,500 181,500 181,500 -
85,800 85,800 85,800 -
52,800 52,800 52,800 -
- - (49,232) 49,232
465,300 465,300 416,068 49,232
(742.361) {615,784) (231,043) 384,741
2,342,202 2,342,202 2,342,202 -
$ 1,599,841 $ 1,726,418 $ 2,111,159 3 384,741
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Highway User Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES:

City sales tax
Intergovernmental Revenue:

Highway user revenues
Interest

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Streets and Highways:
Salaries & wages
Benefits
Service, supplies and other
Capital outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Uses:
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Uses

Net change in fund balance
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 762210 % 762210 $ 685,398 $ (76.812)
311,859 311,859 283,181 (28,678)
5,000 5,000 1,165 (3,835)
1,079,069 1,079,069 969,744 (109,325)
223,715 192,631 181,744 10,887
109,272 94,089 84,634 9,455
392,081 306,110 355,901 (49,791)
95,301 94,301 25,789 68,512
300,000 300,000 300,060 -
131,627 131,627 131,626 1
1,251,996 1,118,758 1,079,694 39,064
(172,927) (39,689) (109,950) (70,261)
{34,000) (34,000) (84,121) {50,121)
{34,000) (34,000) (84,121) (50,121)
(206,927) (73,689) {194,071) (120,382)
323,646 323,646 323,646 -
$ 116,719 $ 249957 $ 129,575 $ (120,382)
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS AND BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for particular purposes.

¢ The Grants Special Revenue Fund is used to account for federal and state grants and other
contributions that are restricted for a specific use.

* The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for federal and state grants and other
contributions that are not cost-reimbursement type grants but are restricted for specific use.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for varions grants and other contributions and transfers

that are restricted or designated for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and
equipment other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of
current and future debt service requirements for governmental debt principal and interest.
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010
Total
Special Capital Debt Non-major
ASSETS Grants Revenue Projects Service Funds
Cash and cash equivalents $ - % - 3 - % - $ .
Receivables:
Properly taxes - - - 19,254 19,254
Intergovernmental 51,805 1,917 30,000 - 83,722
Restricted cash and investments - 97,872 38,576 155,815 292,263
Total Assets $ 51,805 $§ 99789 $ 68,576 $ 175,069 $ 395,239
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 12,428 $ - 3 2,459 % - p 14,887
Due 10 other funds 39,377 - - - 39,377
Deferred revenue - - - 15,731 15,731
Total Liabilities 51,803 - 2,459 15,731 69,995
Fund Balances:
Reserved - 99,789 66,117 159,338 325,244
Total Fund Balances - 99,789 66,117 159,338 325,244
Total Liabilitics and Fund Balances $ 51,805 $ 99789 $§ 68,576 $ 175,069 $ 395,239
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Combining Statermient of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES

Taxes

Intergovernmental revenue
Interest

Other revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers in
Total Other Financing
Sources

Net change in fund balances

TFund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

Total
Special Capital Debt Non-major
Grants Revene Projects Service Funds
- $ - $ - $ 156458 $ 150,458
396,476 - 36,000 - 426,476
- 34 894 - 928
- 36,274 - - 36,274
396,476 36,308 30,894 150,458 614,136
52,113 - - - 52,113
416,920 36,448 229,117 - 682,485
- - - 104,600 104,000
- - - 54,624 54,624
469,033 36,448 229,117 158,624 893,222
(72,557) (140) (198,223) (8,166) (279,086)
71,432 - 61,921 5,150 138,503
71,432 - 61,921 5,150 138,503
(1,125) (14 (136,302 (3,016) {140,583}
1,125 99,926 202,419 162,354 465,827
- $ 99,789 $ 66,117 $ 159,338 $ 325,244
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Grants Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenue $ 861,131 $ 861,131 $ 396476 % (464,655)
Other revenues 95,000 95,000 - (95,000)
Total Revenues 956,131 956,131 396,476 (559,655)
EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety 8,000 8,000 17,720 (9,720
Community Development 152,013 152,613 34,393 117,620
Capital Outlay 848,529 848,529 416,920 431,609
Total Expenditures 1,008,542 1,008,542 469,033 539,509
Excess of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (52,411) (52,411) (72,557) (20,146}
Other Financing Sources:

Transfers in 52,411 52,411 71,432 19,021
Net change in fund balance - - (1,125) (1,125)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,125 1,125 1,125 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,125 $ 1,125 $ - b (1,125)
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Favorabie
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENULS:
Interest $ 100§ 100§ 4 % (66)
Contributions and other 14,807 14,807 36,274 21,467
Total Revenues 14,907 14,907 36,308 21,401
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 114,507 114,507 36,448 78,059
Total Expenditures 114,507 114,507 36,448 78,059
Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (99,600) (99,600) (140) 99,460
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 90,929 99,929 99,929 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 329 $ 329 $ 99,789 $ 59,460
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actuai
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorabie)
REVENUES:
Interest $ - 3 - $ 894 $ 894
Intergovernmental Revenue - 30,000 30,000
Total Revenues - - 30,894 30,894
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 186,500 186,500 229,117 (42,617}
Total Expenditures 186,500 186,500 229,117 (42,617)
Excess of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures {186,500) {186,500) (198,223) (11,723)
Other Financing Sources;

Transfers from General Fund - - 61,921 61,921
Net change in fund balance (186,500) (186,500} (136,302) 50,198
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 202,419 202,419 202,419 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 15919 Ly 15,919 $ 66,117 $ 50,198
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CITY OF WILLCOX, ARIZONA
Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actuatl
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 153,046 $ 153,046 $ 150,458 $ (2,588)
Total Revenues 153,046 153,046 150,458 (2,588)
EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Principal 100,000 104,000 104,000 -
Interest 53,046 54,196 54,624 (428)
Total Expenditures 153,046 158,196 158,624 (428)
Excess of Revenues

Over {(Under) Expenditures - (5,150) (8,166) (3,016)
Other Financing Sources:

Transfer in - 5,150 5,150 -
Net change in fund balance - - (3,016) (3,016)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 162,354 162,354 162,354 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 162,354 $ 162,354 5 159,338 $ (3,016}
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HinTON BURDICK HALL & SPILKER PLLC
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MEMBERS:
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control CHAD B, ATKINSON
. . . . KRIS . BRAUNBERGER
Over Financial Reporting ar_ld on Qomp.llance and other D R, BURDIK
Matiers Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Roang § Cox
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards BoDD B LR
Tooo R. Hess

KENNETH A, HINTON

MORRIS J PEACOCK

PHILLIP S, PENE
The Honorable Mayor and MicHAEL K. SPILKER

City Council MARK E. TICHENOR
City of Willcox, Arizona

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Willcox, Arizona, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated QOctober 29, 2010. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Willcox, Arizona’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weakness, as defined above,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Willcox, Arizona’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

61
ST. GEORGE - 63 SOUTH 3049 EASY, $TE, 100, ST. GEORGE, UT 84770 QFFICE (435) 628-3653 Fax (435) 628-3668
CEDAR CITY - 236 SOUTH MAIN, STE. 100, CEDAR CITY, UT 84720 OFFICE (435) 865-7666 FaX (435} B67-6111
RICHFELD - 159 NORTH MAIN STREET, RICHFIELD, UT 84701 OFFICE (435) 896-5491 Fax (435} 856-5493
HURRICANE - 48 SOUTH 2500 WEST, STE, 200, HURRICANE, UT 84737 OFFICE (435) 635-5665 Fax {435) 635-0552
MESQUITE + 590 WEST MESQUITE BLVD., STE, 201, MESQUITE, NV §0G27 QFFICE (702) 346-3462 Fax (702) 346-3464

www.hintonburdick.com



We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City in the schedule of findings and
recommendations dated October 29, 2010.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of managesment, the mayor, audit committee,
management, and various federal and state agencies, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its
distribution is not limited.

Michael K. Spilker, CPA
October 29, 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report on s J. BRAUNBERGER
State Legal Compliance ROBERT §. Cox
Topo B. FELTNER
BRENT R. HALL
Tooo R. Hess
KENNETH A, HINTCN

The Honorable Mayor and MoRRIS J PEACOCK
: . PHILLIP S, PEINE
Clty Council MicHagL K. SPILKER

Willcox, Arizona MaRK E. TICHENOR

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Willcox, Arizona for the year ended June
30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2010. Qur audit also included test work
on the City of Willcox” compliance with selected requirements identified in the State of Arizona Revised
Statutes and the Arizona State Constitution including, but not limited to, Title 28, Chapter 18, Article 2.

The management of the City of Willcox is responsible for the City's compliance with all requirements
identified above. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with those requirements
based on our audit; accordingly, we make the following statements:

The City of Willcox has established separate funds to account for Highway User Revenue funds
and Local Transportation Assistance funds. Highway user revenue fund monies received by the
City of Willcox pursuant to Title 28, Chapter 18, Aiticle 2 and other dedicated state
transportation revenues received during the current fiscal year appear to have been used solely for
authorized purposes. The funds are being administered in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles. Sources of revenues available and fund balances are reflected in the
individual fund financial statements,

Our opinion regarding the City’s compliance with annual expenditure limitations has been issued
separately with the City’s Annval Expenditure Limitation Report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
material noncompliance with the requirements referred to above occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, The City of Willcox complied, in all material respects, with the requirements identified
above for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Michael K. Spilker, CPA
October 29, 2010
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CITY OF WILLCOX

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL. ACTION /3
Agenda ltem
Tab Number __ &,
Date: 12/06/10 .
Date Submitted: Action: . Sub;ect

' ﬁ-’:' Response.to -
“Auditor’s. Letter

: November?:ﬂ, 2010 ! Resolutlon

SRR For the Fiscal Year 201 0
X Other - . Annual Audli
Formal L
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL
FROM: Finance Director Ruth Graham
DISCUSSION:

As aregular part of the City’s annual audit for Fiscal Year 2009-2010, the auditors, Hinton Burdick
Hall & Spilker, PLLC, provided a letter of Findings and Recommendations for the Year Ended June
30, 2010. The audit report will be presented to the Council on December 6, 2010 by Robyn Sibley of

Hinton Burdick.

The City’s response to such letter is presented here for review and discussion by the Mayor and
Council. Each of'the concerns raised by the auditors has been addressed. Staff actively continues to
make every effort to improve the City’s financial records and financial statements.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Council is asked to review the City’s response to the auditor’s letter of Findings and
Recommendations For the Year Ended June 30, 2010.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Not applicable.
Submitted by: Approved by:

Dt Aghge -

Ruth Graham, Finance Director Pat NicCourt, City Manager







101 8 Railroad Avenue, Suite B
Willcox, Arizona 85643
(520) 384-4271 x4202 Fax: (520) 384-25690
rgraham@willcoxcity. org

CITY OF WILLCOX
Depariment of Finance

“Mine, Yours and Ours’

December 1, 2010

Hinton Burdick Hall & Spilker, PLLC
63 South 300 East Ste 100
St. George, UT 84770

Re: City of Willcox Annual Audit for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The following responses are made to the Findings and Recommendations Hinton, Burdick, Hall & Spilker
noted for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2010:

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
Significant Deficiencies: None noted.
Compliance and Other Matters:

07-5. Budgetary Compliance.

The City is in compliance with its overall budget expenditure limitations. Staff will closely
monitor budget variances by department on an ongoing basis. However, the City must weigh the
cost of staff time required to make detailed journal entries against the benefit of those
adjustments.

10-1.  Adoption of Tax Levy,

Due to an inadvertent error, the Tax Levy Resolution was not adopted at the City Council
meeting held the third week in August. The error was corrected, and more stringent procedures

have been instituted to ensure compliance in a timely manner.

Other Matters:
07-6. Tund Deficit and Interfund Payables.
The City’s rates for Refuse services have been in place since July 1, 2006. Since that time, the

City has absorbed annual cost of living increases passed through from the contract provider, as
well as annual solid waste fee increases by the Cochise County landfill. Although the Refuse



December I, 2010
Page Two

Fund continues to operate at a deficit, the City has addressed the issue and the deficit is declining.
It has been reduced from $139,711 in 2008, to $120,622 in 2009, and $107,396 in 2010. On
November 15, 2010, the City adopted Municipal Code Section 5, Health and Safety, Section 6,
Solid Waste to update the Code and address the operation of the Refuse Utility.

Thank you for your assistance in this matter.

Yours very truly,

City of Willcox

Ruth E. Graham
Finance Director

cc: Mayor and Council
City Manager
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The Honorable Mayor and BRENT R, HALL
: : Toop R. HEss
. City CO}JIIC!] . KENNETH A. HINTON
City of Willcox, Arizona Mormis J PEACOCK
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MicHAEL K. SPILKER
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Professional standards require that we communicate, in writing, deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that are considered significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that are identified
during the audit of the financial statements. We wish to commend the City for their improvements and
oversight of the City’s accounting and budgeting system for the fiscal year 2010. During our audit of the
City of Willcox for the year ended June 30, 2010, we noted a few circumstances that, if improved, would
further strengthen the City’s accounting system and control over its assets and compliance with laws and
regulations. These items are discussed below for your consideration:

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:
Significant Deficiencies:

None Noted

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS:
Compliance:

07-5. Budgetary Compliance

Finding

State law as per A.R.S. Sec. 42-17106 states that a City shall not spend money for a purpose that
is not included in its budget. The City did not exceed its expenditure limit; however, the Schedule
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget-to-Actual reports for various
funds identifies over-expended fund and department budgets.

Recommendation

We recommend that the City operate within the confines of the budget by limiting expenditures
or following praper procedures to adjust departmental budgets,
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10-1.  Adoption of Tax Levy

Finding

State law requires a City or Town to adopt their property tax levy on or before the third Monday
in August. We noted the City did not adopt their property tax levy until September 8, 2010.

Recommendation

We recommend that the City operate within the State law by adopting their property tax levy by
the third Monday in August,

Other Matters:

07-6. Fund Deficit and Interfund Pavables

Finding

The Refuse Fund has incurred operating losses and cash shortfalls that have accumulated from
prior years resulting in a deficit fund balance of $81,201 as of June 30, 2010. This has also
resulted in the Refuse fund borrowing cash from other funds. As of June 30, 2010 the amount
owed to other funds was $107,396. The fund deficit as of June 30, 2009 was $120,622 and the
deficit as of June 30, 2008 was to $139,711. In addition, the fund transferred monies to the
General Fund amounting to $52,800 when it already has a deficit balance.

Recommendation

We understand that the City is aware of this situation and intends to eliminate the fund deficit by
Refuse fund earnings. We recommend that the City continue its efforts to eliminate the fund
deficit and the inter-fund payable and consider additional alternatives or appropriation of other

funds.

Responses

Please respond to the above findings and recommendations in letter form.,

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management, and
various federal and state agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

It has been a pleasure to be of service to the City this past year, We would like to express special thanks
to each of you who assisted us so efficiently in this year’s audit. We invite you to ask questions of us
throughout the year as you feel it necessary and we look forward to a continued pleasant professional

relationship,

Sincerely,

Michael K. Spilker, CPA
QOctober 29, 2010



CITY OF WILLCOX
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item: / ?/
Tab Number: 7
Date: 12-:06-2010

Date Submitted: Action: Subject: Appointment

11-29-10 Resolution of City representatives to
Ordinance the Advisory Board set

Date Requested: Formatl up by City and NCCH

12-6-10 X Other

TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL

FROM: City Manager

DISCUSSION: When the City and Northern Cochise Community Hospital (NCCH) entered into
an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) concerning the Senior Citizens Center, there was a
provision for an Advisory Board. The Advisory Board has two (2) members appointed by the
City, two (2) members appointed by the NCCH, and five members chosen by lot from
applications submitted by interested parties over 60 years of age. The appointee terms have no
term. The Council may wish to make the appointment until either a vacancy occurs or after the
next election whichever occurs first.

In order to get the Advisory Board operating it is in order for the City to name its Appointees.
Two Council members have expressed an interest in serving, Mayor Lindsey and Vice Mayor
Cronberg. The City appointees are not required to be Council members or meet any age
requirements. Library Director Tom Miner has been working with the hospital personnel to help
get the Center operating and provide meaningful programs (even before the center was visualized
the Library was operating some programs for seniors). Mr. Miner is willing to serve on the
Advisory Board; however he is only 59 years of age and cannot fill one of the five members
chosen at large. Mr. Miner could be appointed as one of the City’s appointees and Mayor Lindsey
couid fill an at-large position.

In discussions with the hospital personnel I understand there has not been a large response to the
requests for individuals interested in serving on the Advisory Board.

RECOMMENDATION: Appoint two individuals to a stated term of office on the Senior
Citizen Advisory Board.

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A
Prepared by: Pat McCourt

Approved by:







CITY OF WILLCOX
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item: 25 '
Tab Number: 4

Date: 12-06-2010

Date Submitted: Action: Subject: Consent Order

12-1-10 , Resolution from AzDEQ concerning
Ordinance the WWTP

Date Requested: Formal

12-6-10 _ X Other

TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL

FROM: City Manager

DISCUSSION: Attached is a latest draft Consent Order (CO) from the Arizona Department of
Environmental Quality (AzDEQ). This is the result of the Notice of Violations (NOVs), which
the City received in January 2009,

While staff has some concerns on the assertions made in the draft CO, of primary concern to staff
is the Section III “Compliance Schedule”. Staff understands the need to correct the current
situation and to have the corrections done in a timely manner. Staff is uncomfortable with the
time lines presented and especially when taken in conjunction with Section V “Violations of
Order/Stipulated Penalties” and the very limited extensions possible under Section V1I “Force
Majeure”. There is some possible relief under Section XII “Modifications™.

In discussions with the State they have agreed to an approval date by the City of January 16,
2011. This should allow sufficient time for the City to get an RFQ for engineering awarded and
fulfill the requirements in the Draft Consent order

Mr. Bonner is very familiar with the proceedings and can fill in any blanks and answer questions
on the subject.

The purpose of this item is to inform the Council. It is anticipated that the subject will be back on
the council agenda on January 3, 2011 request permission to approve.

RECOMMENDATION: Input is welcomed and discussion and direction to staff is
requested.

FISCAL IMPACT: The cost of upgrades at the Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP)
has previously been presented to the Council and has been built into the City’s budget. The
necessary improvements will require multiple years to accomplish. It is very likely that the
improvements at the WWTP will result in increases in Sewer Rates.

Prepared by: Pat McCourt

Approved by: | (’QJb\

Pat McCourt, City Manager







ARIZONA DEPARTMENT
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ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

1110 West Washington Street » Phoenix, Arizona 85007

Jaice K, Brewer - (602) 771-2300 » www.azdeq.gov Benjamin H. Grumbles
: ) Director

Governor

November 9, 2010 o Certified Mail

Pat McCourt, City Manager
City of Willcox

101 8. Railroad Ave., Suite B
Willcox, AZ 85643

‘Re: October 13, 2010 Teleconference - Consent Order Negotiations and Response to the City of
Willcox’s October 8, 2010 letter. ) .

Dear Mr. McCourf:

This letter is to summarize thc teleconference between the Arizona Department of Environment
Quality (ADEQ) and the City of Willcox on October 13, 2010, for negotiating the compliance
.schedule in the draft Consent Order, and respond to the City of Willcox October 8, 2010 letter.
Present on the teleconference were Pat McCourt, Dave Bonner, John Bowen, Linda Stoddard,

- Sam Lindsey, Marcy Mullins and Nirupma Bhatia.

The following is an outline of the items discussed during the teleconference and resulting actions
as it relatgs to the October 8, 2010 letter and pr0posed compliance schedule in the draft Consent

Order.

ADEQ clarified during the teleconference that the City of Willcox does not currently have an
active reuse permit. An amendment to APP #102778 for the upgrade of the facility can provide
the necessary certification for the reclaimed water for direct reuse on the Twin Lakes Golf
Course. ADEQ recognizes the efforts the City of Willcox has made in working with the ADEQ
permitting section and appreciates the good faith effort to address outstanding violations by
entering into this Consent Order with mutually agreeable timeframes to meet compliance.

In the October 8, 2010 letter, the City of Willcox requested that the compliance date to submit an
administratively complete application for an amendment coincide with USDA-RD’s approval of
the Professional Engineering Report/Environmental Report. ADEQ will consider an alternate
compliance date to submit an administrativeiy complete APP application under Section III (B).
However, ADEQ will still require the City of Willcox to complete the construction and require
an Engineer’s Certificate of Completion within three (3) years of ADEQ’s issuance of the

amendment to the APP permit.

' Southern Reglonal Office
400 West Congress Street » Suite 433 « Tucson, AZ 85701
{520) 628-6733

Northern Reglonél Office
1807 W. Route 66 « Suite 117 « Flagstaff, AZ 86001
{928) 7790313
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The City of Willcox has requested clarification under Scctlon I (D) of the Compliance
Schedule in the draft Consent Order on the definition of “restoration”. To clarify the intent of the
final transference of the solids removed at the Twin Lakes Golf Course, ADEQ has removed the
reference to “restoration” and replaced it with “disposition”,

ADEQ has reviewed the copy of the City of Willcox’s Sewer Use Ordinance that was submitted
as part of the October 8, 2010 letter and found it was inadequate to address the necessary
authorities to implement required measures in a pretreatment toxic control plan. However,
ADEQ has revised the language under Section ITI (D)(e) by removing “an updated” Sewer Use -
Ordinance to “Timeline to update the Sewer Use Ordinance as needed to reflect the necessary
authorities to implement and enforce the PTCP”, ADEQ will continue to provide guidance to the
City of Willcox to help develop the necessary components for an effective pretreatment toxic
control plan including uniform requirements for users of the WW’I‘P to prevent the introduction

of pollutants that will interfere with its operation.

Regarding the language in Section V of the draft Consent Order for stipulated penalties, under
A.R.S. § 49-262, ADEQ has the authority to assess penalties for violation of the Consent Order.
Please know that in the event the City of Willcox would violate the Consent Order, ADEQ
would put the City on notice of such violation. The City of Willcox would have the opportunity
to respond to any claimed violation and provide evidence that it is in compliance. After
reviewing the evidence, if ADEQ determines that there i is no violation, no stxpulated

administrative penalties would be collected.

In summary, please find enclosed a revised draft of the Consent Order. ADEQ understands that
the City of Willcox will be presenting the draft Consent Order to the Willcox City Council at the
December 2010 meeting. If you are in agreement with the terms of the Consent Order and no
other revisions are necessary, please sign page 16 and include your initials on pages 1-15 in the
area provided at the bottom of each page. Please return the original signed copy to ADEQ in the
self addressed envelope included with this correspondence. Should you need further clarification
or wish to speak to me dlrectly, I can be reached at (602) 771-4479. ‘

Smcerely,

S

Nirupma Bhatia, Enforcément Officer
Water Quality Enforcement Unit

Enclosure
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BEFORE THE DIRECTOR OF THE
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

In the Matter of: )
: ) CONSENT ORDER

City of Willcox - Wastewater Treatment Plant )
located at 151 W Maley 'St Willcox , Cochise )
County, Arizona )
‘ )
Inventory Number: 102778 ) Docket No.

)

)

"Willcox under applicable law. Further, Willcox does not admit, and both the Arizona

City of Willcox in its capaclty as owner and/or operator of City of Willcox - Wastewater
Treatment Plant located at 151 W Maley St, Willcox, Cochise County, Arizona.
f - RECITALS

City of Willcox (“Willcox™) acknowledges that no promise of any kind or nature
whatsoever, was xﬁade to induce it to enter into this Consent Order, and Willcox has done so
voluntarily. | R

Willcox acknowledges that by entering into this Consent Order, it does not resolve any
liability it may have for civil penalties for violations of any State or Federal environmental law.

By entering into this Consent Order, Wilicox does not admit to any civil or criminal

liability, or waive any right including.but not limited to the assertion of any defense available to

Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) and Willcox retain the right to controvert in any
subsequent proceeding excepf proceeding to implement or enforce this Consent Order, the
va;idity of any Findings of Fact or Conclusions of Law contained in this Consent Order. |

The underéigr;ed representative of Willcox certifies that he is fully authorized to execute
this Consent Order on behalf of Willcox and to legally bind Willcox to this Consent Order.

Willeox admits to the jurisdiction of the Director of ADEQ.

Initials
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Except as to the right to controvert the valiidity of any Findings of Fact or Conclusion of
Léw contained in this Consent Order in a proceedling other than to enforce this Coﬁseht Order,
‘Willcox consents to the terms and entry of this Consent Order and agrees not to contest the
validity or terms of thls Consent Order in any subsequcnt proceedmg
THEREFORE, IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED as fpilows:. _,

i. JURISDICTION

The Director of ADEQ has jlll'lSdlctl(}ll over the subject matter of this action and is
authorized to issue this Consent Order pursuant to the Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) §§ |
49-261, and 41-1092.07(F)(5).

_ II. FINDINGS
THE DIRECTOR HEREBY MAKES THE FOLLOWING FINDINGS OF FACT ANI;

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:

A.  Findings of Fac
1. The City of Willcox Wastewater 'I‘reatment Plant (WWTP) is located at 151 W

Maley St, Willeox, Cochise County. Willcox is authorized under an Aquifer Protection Permit
APP # P-102778, to operate the WWTP with a mammum average monthly flow of 0.6 million
ga{lons per day (MGD). |

2. Willcox has an Arizona Poliution Elimination Dlschargc System (AZPDES)
Permit # AZOO2S771 for a discharge to Lake Cochise.

3. Willcox does not currently possiess a permit‘for reuse of its effluent.

4. On May 20, 2008, lADEQ Soutﬁern Regional Office (SRO) iﬁspected the
WWTP. During the inspection, SRO discovered that Willcox had upgraded the headworks lift
station and added an ultra-violet (UV) disinfection'system. In addition, SRO discovered that six
ponds at the Twin Lakeg Golf Course were -being used by Willcox as part'the WWTP process

instead of as reuse ponds. Ajso, a portion of the effluent produced by the WWTP was being used

L 2 : Initials
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' (18) occasions and for cadmium on one occasion during 1* quarter of 2007; c) exceedanqes of

by the Twin Lakes Golf Course for irrigation purposes in a way that allowed human contact with
the effluent. None of these modiﬁcati‘ons. to the treatment 'prodess are identiﬁed in Willoox’s
APP # P-102778. | |

- 5. During the May 20, 2008 inspéction, SRO also observed that water frcrﬁ a
groundwater well, that had not been identified or included in the Willcox’s AZPDES permit
application, was being pumped and directly discharged to Lake Cochise. The analytioel data
subsequently submitted by Willcox showed a pH as high as 9.82 in the groundwater discharged

to Lake Cochise.
6. On December 3, 2008, SRO conducted another inspection of the facility and

observed that a valve was discharging partially treated effluent to Lake Cochise through its
AZPDES outfall, bypassing a portion of the treatment process. | |

7. On December 23, 2008, ADEQ issued a Notice of Violation (NOV) to |
Willcox alleging the following AZPDES violations: a) a discharge to Lake Cochise without an
AZPDES peﬁnit; b) not registering the groundwater well with ADWR; ¢) failure to submit the
discharge monitoring reports (DMRs) for the results of sampling conducted at groﬁndwater well

# 001 and Lake Cochise from May 30, 2003 through May 30, 2008.

8. On Decémber 23, 2008, ADEQ issued a second NOV to Wilicox alleging
the following APP permit violationé: a) failure to report déﬁciéncies to ADEQ, set discharge
limit (DL}, or of an alert limit (AL) being exceeded; b) exceedances of the APP Aquifer Quality

Limit (AQL) and Aquifer Water Quaﬁty Standards (AWQS) for selenium on at least eighteen

the AQL and AWQS for thallium on two occasions during 2 and 3 quarter of 2008; d)
exceedances of APP discharge limit for pH and fecal coliform for over three hundred (300)

occasions during the period January 2007 through November 2007. _
9. On December 23, 2008, ADEQ issued a third NOV to Willcox alleging the

-3- Initials
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following reuse violations: a) Direct reuse of reclaimed water withqut a permit; b) Use of Class
C reclaimed water for a type of direct reuse requiring Claés A or Class B reclaimed water; c)
Failure to use ﬁppiication methods that reasonﬁbly preclude human contact with reclaimed water
when irrigating with reclaimed water; ¢) failure to use application methods that reasonably
preclude human contact with reclaimed water when irrigating with reclaimed water; d) Failure to
place or maintain signage at required locationé so the public is informed that reclaimed water is
in use. |
B. Conclusions of Law
- AZPDES Vigiatio‘ns: :

1. By dischaa:rgin_g| effluent and pumped water from the groundwater well into
Lake Cochise (listed as effluent dépcndcnt water under A.A.C. R18-11-1 1-3(D)(10)), a water of
the U.S. without a permit, Willcox viélated ARSS. § 49-255.01(A), which requires that a person
shall not discharge to a water of the U.S. except under conformance with an AZPDES or NPDES
permit, - |

2. By exceeding numeric Surface Water Q@lity Standards (SWQS) found at
A.A.C. R18-11-109(B), for pH in the water samples at groundwat.er well # 002 and at Lake
Cochise from 4™ quarter of 2008 through 2™ quarter of 2009, Willcox violated A. A. C. R18-11-
109 B which proiides a SWQS of 6.5-9.0 for pH .

3. Bf failing to submit DMRs for the periods May 2003 through March 2008,
and from April through June 2009, Willcox violated Part ILB.1 of AZPDES Penhit #
AZ0024830 which requireé the permittee to report monitoring results to ADEQ.

| 4, By failing to report to ADEQ, the quartérly results for trace substances
listed under Part I.B. Table 2.a, .the annual results for trace substances listed un&cr Part I.B.Tab.Ie

2.b, the annual results for WET Testing iisted under Part I1.D. Table 4, Willcox violated Part

“d - Initials
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ILB.I of AZPDES Permit # AZ0024830 which requires the permittee fo report ‘monitoring
results to ADEQ, | |
5. By exceeding the permit DLs for 5-Day bioloﬁcﬂ oxygen demand (BOD)'
on at !east nine (9) occasions for the period April 2008 through June 2009, Willcox violated Part
LA. Table 1 of AZPDES Permlt # AZ0024830, which provides DLs of 68 Kg/day for monthly
average mass loadmg, and 30 mg/L for monthly average concentration for 5-Day BOD.
6. By exceeding the DLs for suspended solids (SS) on at least seven (7)
occasions during the period April 2008 through March 20609, Willcox violated Part I.A. Table 1
of AZPDES Permit # AZ0024830, which provides the DLs of 68 Kg/day for monthly avc;'age
mass loading, 102 Kg/day for weekly average mass loading, 30 mg/l' f_br monthly average

concentration, and 45 mg/] for weekly average concentration for SS.

7. By exceeding the DLs for E-coli on at least seven (7) occasions during
the period April 2008 through February 2009; Willcox violated Part LA, Table 1 of AZPDES.
Permit # AZ0024830, which provides the DLs of 126 cfi/100m! for monthly average

concentration and 576 cfu/100ml for daily maximum concentration for E-coli.

8. By exceeding the DLs for the percentage of removal of Suspended solids
on at least six (6) occasions during the period April 2008 through March 2009, Willcox violated

Part LA. Table 1 of AZPDES Permit # AZ0024830, which provides a DL of 85 for the

percentage of removal of suspended solids
9. By exceeding the permit DLs for the percentage of removal of 5-Day

biological oxygen demand on at least four (4) occasions during the period April 2008 through

March 2009, Willcox violated Part. LA. Table 1 of AZPDES Permit # AZ0024830, which
pr'ovidesva DL of 85 for the percentage of removal of 5-Day biological oxygen demand

APP Violations:
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10. By exceeding the APP AQL and AWQS for selenium on at feast nineteen
(19) occasions for the period June 2002 through December 2007, Willcox violated Section 4.0
Table II of APP # P-102778 which provides an AQL and AWQS of 0.05 ﬁxg/l for selenium.

| 11. By exceeding the APP AQL and AWQS for cadmium on one occasion
during 1% quartér of 2007, Willcox violated Section 4.0 Table II of APP # P-102778 which
provides an AQL and AWQS of 0.005mg/! for cadmium. |

12. By exceeding the APP AQL and AWQS for thallivm on four (4)
occasions during the 2™ and 3 quarter of 2008, ard 2" quarter of 2609, Willoox violated
Section 4.0 Table Il of APP # P-102778 which provides an AQL and AWQS of 0.002mg/1 for
thallium, '

13. -By exceeding the APP AQL and AWQS for beryllium on one occasion
during 4" quarter of 2006, Willcox violated Section 4.0 Table II of APP # P-102778 which
provides an AQL and AWQS of 0.004mg/! for beryllium.

14. - By exceeding the APP AQL and AWQS for total tri-halomethane
(TTHM) in significant amount -on one occasion duﬁng the 4™ quarter 2006, Willcox viélated
Section 4.0 Table II of APP # P-102778 which provides an AQL and AWQS of 0.1 mg/l for

TTHM.
15. Willcox failed to report to ADEQ permit violations as required by APP

No. P-102778.
16. By exceeding the APP discharge limit for daiiy sampling of fecal

coliform oh at least twenty nine (29) occasions from 4% quarter of 2008 through 2" quarter of
2009, Willcox violated ‘Section 4.-0 Table I of APP No. P-102778 which provides a DL of
800cfu/100m]1 for daily sampling of fecal coliform.
. 17. By failing to conduct daily sampling of fecal coliform on over five

hundred (500) occasions from 4™ quarter of 2002 through the 2" quarter of 2009, Willcox
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violated Section 4.0 Table I of APP No. P-102778 which lists the parameters which require

monitoring and the sampling frequency for those parameters.

18. By exceeding the APP discharge- limit for 4 out of 7 weekly samples for
fecal coliform on at least thjrty nine (39) occasions from 4™ quarter of 2002 through 1* quarter of
2009, Willcox violated Section 4.0 Table I of APP No. P-102778 which provides a DL of 200cfu

/100m! for 4 out of 7 samples for fecal cohfonn

19. By exceeding the APP discharge limit of 6-9 for pH on’at least ninety
two (92) occasions from 1* quarter of 2007 through 2™ quarter of 2009, Willcox violated Section

4.0 Table I of APP # P-102778 which provides a DL of 6-9 for pH.
20. By failing to conduct verification sampling after exceeding AQLs for

total coliform, cadmium, selemum tha]hum, and total tri-halomethane ('ITHM) Willcox
wo!ated Sect[on 2 6.4.(1) of APP # P-102778 which requires the pernuttee to conduct

verification samplmg within five (5) days of becommg aware of an AQL violation.

21. By failing to conduct veriﬁcation sampling afier exceeding DLs for
PH, fecal cohform, and monthiy average flow, Willcox violated Sectlon 2 6 3.(1)of APP # P- |

102778 which requxres the permittee to conduct verification samplmg within 24 hours of

becoming aware of a DL violation.

| Reuse Violations;
22. By operating a reuse facility at the Twin Lakes Golf Course without
an APP permit for reuse of reclaimed water, Willcox has violated A.A.C. R18-9-704(E) which

requires-that a person shall not directly reuse reclaimed water unless permitted under this Article.

23. By applying reclaimed water that did not meet Class B standards at
Twin Lakes Golf Course, Willcox has violdted A.A.C. R18-11-307(C) which requires that a

person shall not use Class C reclaimed water for a type of direct reuse listed as Class B.
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. 1. COMPLIANCE SCHEDULE |
THE DIRECTOR HEREBY ORDERS and Willcox agrees to comply with the pmﬁsions of
this Consent Order as follows:

A. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Consent Order Willcox
shall schedule an APP pre-application meeting with the Water Quality_Division .Ground Water
Section. | | ‘
| B. Within sixty (60) days of the pre-appliqatibn meeting, Willcox shall submit an
administrz{ﬁvely complete application for an amendment to APP# 102778 to re-engineer the
WWTP using the appropriate technology so the discharge limits (DLs) and all other APP limits
and conditions are met and maintained. Willcox shal! respond to anSr deficiencies noted by
ADEQ within the timé prescribed by ADEQ. |

C. Upon the effective date of this Consent. Order, Willcox shall- submit a
withdrawal of its current APP application to the Watér Quality Division Ground Water Section.

D. Within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this Consent Order, Willcox
shall submit to ADEQ for approval, 2 Workplan to address solids removal, and disposition of the
ponds that are dry and not in use on'th_e Twin Lakes Golf Course. Storage of the solids removed
must include measures detailed in thé Workplan "to prevent of minimize the likelihood of | -
adversely aﬁ'ecting human health or &e énvirbnment, and shall include but is not limited to:

a. contaxnin#ﬁon of groundwater
~ b. nuisance such as odor and vectors
c. | diversion of stormwater run-off
After review of .the Workplan by ADEQ, Willcox shall respond tc; any.
deficiencies noted withiﬁ the time prescribed by ADEQ. Onc;e approved, Willcox shail

implement the Workplan including any deadlines therein.
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. E.  Within one hundred and eighty (180) days of the effective date of this
Consent drder, Willcox shall develop and submit to ADEQ for approval a Pretreatment Toxic
Control Plan that will ensure compliance with pretreatment methods for_control of toxic
pollutants discharged to the WWTP. The PTCP shall include but is not limited to:

| . & An industrial waste survey to identify all commercial and industrial

dischargers likely to discharge pollutants which may adversely impact the collection system or
treatment works.

b. identification of opera:‘;ing problems known or suspe'cted to have bc}en
caused by commerc;ial or indush"ial discharges. |

c.  Identification of Best Management Practices for commercial and
industrial discharges including septage haulers and :cétaurants with potential fats, oil and grease
discharges vﬁzich ar;e harmful to the treatment system. | |

d. Standard operating procedures that will be implemented to ensure

compliance with the PTCP and;
e. Timeline to update the City of Wilicox Sewer Use Ordinance as needed

to reflect the necessary authorities to implement and enforce the PTCP. -
| F. Up(_)n the effective date of this Con’sent'Order, Willcox shall conduct the
necessary actions to meet compliance with Conditions A. Table 5 aﬁd B. Table 6 under Part V
Speéiﬁl Conditions of AZPDES permit # AZ0025771. Willcox shall complete all monitoring
requirements, inclu_ding wﬁole effluent toxicity (WET) testing and verification sampling and
submit the results to ADEQ in accordance with Part IV of AZPDES permit # AZ0025771.
G.  Upon the effective date. of this Consent Order, Willcox shall continue all

monitoring in accordance with Section 4.0 of APP Permit P-102778 for the duration-of this

i

Order or-until the APP amendment is in effect.
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schedule below:
Period of Failure to Comply Penalty Per Day of Violation
1% to 30™ day $100 per day per violation

H. Within three (3) years of ADEQ’s issuance of the amended APP,
Wiilcox shall complete all implementation of the tasks and construction in the amended APP and
notify ADEQ in writing within fifteen days of completion of such tasks.‘ Where required,
Willcox shall submit an Engineer’s‘ Certificate of Completion within thirty days of completion of
construction activities prior to discharging. |
A IV. STATUS REPORTS'

A. Willcox agrees to submit a written status report to ADEQ every thirty (30)
calendar dé.ys_ beginning thirty (30) days from the effective dafe of this Consent Order, until
termination of this Consent Order. Each written status report shall describe what measures have
been taken under Section III, of this Consent Order, and shall certify when compliance with the
req_p.iremeﬁts of Section III of this Order has been achieved. Each report shall be accompanied
by evidence of compliance including, as appropriate, submittal of documents, photographs dr
copies of any other supporting information that Willcox deems necessary.

B. ADEQ will review the status reports and relay any disputes in writing to Willcox.
Willcox shall incorporate all required modifications, changes or other alterations, as requested by
ADEQ, within a reasonable time speciﬁed‘ by ADEQ.

V. VIOLATIONS OF ORDER/STIPULATED PENALTIES

A, Under A.R.S. $ 49-262, violation of this Consent Order subjects Willcox to civil | ~

penalties of up to $25,000 per day per violation. ADEQ and Willcox agree that the calculation | -
of civil penalties for violation of this Consent Order would be very difficult.
B. ADEQ and Willcox therefore agree that if Willcox fails to comply with any

requirement of this Consent Order, Willcox shall pay a stipulated pen?.liy pursuant to- the
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31" to 60" day | $250 per day per violation

After 60 days . ‘ | $500 per day per violation

C. Except as otherwise provided herein, stipulated penalties shall begin to accrue on
the day that performance is due or that a violation of this Consent Order occurs and shall
continue to accrue .uhtil correction of the act of noncoxﬁpiiance is completed. Neither issuance
by ADEQ nor receipt by Willcox of a'Notice of Violation of the terms and conditions of this
Consent Order are conditions precedent to the accrual of stipulated peﬁalties. _ |

D. Stipuiated penalty payments shall be made pursuant to & civil settlement {e.g.,
Consent Judgment) with ADEQ filed in a cou& of competent jurisdiction. If ADEQ and Willcox¥
are unable to reach agreement for payment of stipulated penaities under a civil settlement, or if
Willcox fails to make paymeﬁt of stipulated penalties due under a civil settlement, ADEQ may
ﬁle a civil action seeking the maximum civil penalty allowed under Federal or State law for
violation of this Consent Order. _

E. The stiplil_ated penalties required by this Con;ent Order shall be in addition to
other remedies or sanctions available to ADEQ by reason of any failure by Willcox to comply
with the requirements of Federal or State laws. The payment of stipulated penalties shall not;
relieve Willcox from compliance with the terms and conditions of this Consent Order or Federal

or State laws, nor limit the authority of the State to require compliance with the Consent Order or

State law.,
V1. COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LAWS
A This Consent Order does not encompass issues regarding releases, contamination,

sources, operations, facilities or processes not expressly covered by the terms of this Consent
Order, and is without prejudice to the rights of the State of Atizona or Willcox, arising under any

federal or Arizona environmental statutes and rules with regard to such issues.
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‘could not have been overcome or prevented by Willcox. The financial inability of Willcox to

B. Nothing in this Consent Or&er shall constitute a permit of any kind, or a
modification of any permit of any kind, or an agreement to issue a permit of any kind under
federal, state or local law, or relieve Willcox in any manner of its obligation to apply for, obtain,
and comply with all applicable peﬁnits. Nothing in this Consent Order shall in any way alter,
modify or revoke federal, state, or local law, or relieve Willcox in any manner of its obligation to
comply with such laws. Compliance with the te@s of this Consent Order shail not be a defense
-to any action to enforce any such permits or laws.

VII. FORCE MAJEURE

A, Willcox shall perform all the requirements of this Consent Order according to the
time limits set forth herein, unless performance is prevented or delayed by events which
constitute a force majeure. Force majeure, for th;a purposes of this Consent OrQer, is defined as
any event, arising from causes beydnd the control of Willcox or its authorized representatives

which delays or prevents the performance of any obligation under this Consent Order and which

comply with the terms of this Consent Order, shall not const:itute a force majeure.

B. In the event of a force majeure, the time for petrformance of the activity affected
by the force majeure shall be determined by ADEQ- and extended for a period no longer than the
delay caused by the force majeure. The time for performance of any activity dependenf on the
delayed activity shall be similarly extended. In the event of a force majeure, Willcox shall notify
ADEQ in writing within five (5) caleﬁd'ar days afte;r ‘Willcox or its agents become aware of the
occurrence. Ther written .notice provided to ADEQ shall describe in detﬁil the event, the
anticipated delay, the measures taken énd to be taken by Willcox to prevent or minimize delay,
and a proposed timetable under which those Imeasures will be implemented. Willcox shall take

all reasonable measures to prevent or minimize any delay caused by the force majeure. Failure
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of Willcox to comply with any requirements of this paragraph for a particular event shall
preclude Willcox from asserting any claim of force majeure for that event.
VIIL SITE ACCESS

ADEQ may at any time, upoh presentation of credentials to authorized personnel on duty,
enter upon the premises at the Facility for the purpose of observing and monitoring compliance
with the provisions of this Consent Order. This right of entry shall be in addition to, and not in

limitation of or substitution for, ADEQ's rights under applicable law.

IX. CORRESPONDENCE

All documents, materi;ﬂs, plans, notices, or other items submitted as a result of this
Consent Order shall be transmitted to the addresses specified below:

To ADEQ:

Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
Water Quality Division

Attention: Nirupma Bhatia, Case Manager
Water Quality Enforcement Unit

1110 West Washington Street

Phoenix, Arizona 85007-2935

Telephone: (602) 771-4479

Email: nb3@azdeq.gov

To Willcox:
Pat McCourt, City Manager
City of Willcox
101 S Raiiroad Ave

Ste B
Willcox, AZ 85643-2135

Submissions to ADEQ as a result of this Consent Order shall be deemed submitted upon receipt.
| X. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

A. This Consent Order is based solely upon currently available information, If

additional information is &iécovgmd, which indicates that the actions taken-undgr this Consent

Order are or will be inadequate to protect human health, safety, or the environment, or to
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' Consent Order; to disapprove of work performed by Willcox that fails to comply with this

conform with applicable federal or state laws, ADEQ shall have the right to require further
action. '
B. ADEQ shall have the right: to puxsué civil penalties for violations of any and all

violations of A.R.S. Title 49, or the rules.promulgated thereunder, occurring before entry of this

Consent Order; to take enforcement action for any and all violations of this Consent Order; and
to take enforceiﬁent action for any and all violations of A.R.S. Title 49, or the rules prorﬁulgated
thereunder, oécurring after thé entry 6f this Consent Order.
| X1. SEVERABILITY

The pfovisions of this Consent Order are severable. If any provision of this Consent
Order is declared by a court.of law to be invalid or unenforceable, all other provisfons of this
Consent Order shall remaiﬁ in full force and effect. |

4 X11. MODIFICATIONS -
'Any modifications of this Consént Order shall be in writing and must be approved by

both Willcox and ADEQ.
XIII. EFFECTIVE DATE

The effective date df this Consent Order shall be the date this Consent Order is signed by

ADEQ and Willcox. If such signatures occur on different dates, the later date shall be the

effective date of this Consent Order, '
- XIV. PARTIES BOUND
No change in ownership, corporate status, or partnership status relating to the subject of
this Consent Order will in any way alter the responsibilities of Willcox under this Consent Order.

Willcox will be responsible, and will remain responsible, for carrying out all activities required

under this Consent Order.
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XV. TERMINATION
The provisions of this Consent Order shall be deemed satisfied and this Consent Order shall be
tcpninated upon receipt of written notiﬁcatibn from ADEQ that Willcox has demonsﬁ'ated, fo fhe |
saﬁsfac;ﬁon of ADEQ, that all of the ternis of this Consent Order have been completed. Any
denial of a request for termination from Willcox will be in writing and describe which terms of
the Consent Order have not been completed to the mﬁsﬁcﬁon of ADEQ. ADEQ reserves the
right to terminate this Consent Order unilaterally at any time for any reason. Any termination |

will include a written explanation of the reason(s) for termination.

ISSUED this __dayof , 2010,

Michael A. Fulton, Director
Water Quality Division
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
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CONSENT TO ORDER
The unders;gned on behalf of Willcox, hereby acimowledges that [he/she] has read the
foregoing Cons_ent Order in its entirety, agrees with the statements made therein, consents to its | -

entry and issuance by the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality, agrees that Willcox

will abide by the same and waive any right to appeal therefrom.

DATED this __day of | , 2010.

City of Willcox

By: B ‘
Pat McCourt, City Manager
City of Willcox
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ORIGINAL of the foregoing Consent Order was sent certified mail, return recelpt requested,
this___ day of » 2010, to:

Pat McCourt, City Manager
City of Willcox.

101 S Railroad Ave -

SteB

Willcox, AZ 85643-2135

COPY of the foregoing Consent Order was filed this __dayof 2010, with:

. | Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
Office of Administrative Counsel

Attention: Hearing Administrator.

1110 West Washington Street

Phoenix, Arizona 85007-2935

COPIES of the foregoing Consent Order were sent by regular/mterdepartmental mail, this
day of , 2010, to the following:

Mark Horlings, Civil Unit Chief
Environmentai Enforcement Section, -
Office of the Attorney General

.| 1275 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85007

Cynthia Campbell, Manager, WQCS, ADEQ
William Ellett, Acting SRO Director, ADEQ
Jerry Smit, Manager, GWS, ADEQ

Marmmnie Greenbie, Manager SWS, ADEQ
Marcia Colquitt, Manager, WQEU, ADEQ

Vaira Harik, Director

Cochise County Health Department
1415 W. Melody Ln. Bldg A
Bisbee, AZ 85603

Ken Greenberg, Manager

CWA Compliance Office (WTR-7)
U.S. EPA, Region IX

75 Hawthrone Street

San Francisco, CA 94105
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Employee Luncheon

When: FRIDAY
December 10th, 2010
11:30 a.m. to 1:30 p.m.

Where: community Center

The City Manager invites you to attend an £mployee Pot Luck Luncheor.
This luncheon will feature a Chili Cook Off and a Salsa Contest.
The Winners of our Annual Awards will be announced at Noon.
If anyone has additional ideas for fun things to do, please give me a call.

If you plan to bring an item for either contest, please sign up with your
Admin Assistants or call me in HR. Also, let them know if you will be brining
any additional dishes.

Our Administrative Assistants has ballots for the Annual Awards. Please
participate in this it is an honor to receive something from your peers.
These Ballots must be returned to Christy Whelan by Noon on December
07, 2010.

WE WILL SEE YOU THERE!

Attending this Pot Luck is not Mandatory






